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2001 YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
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1979
1981
Morgan Guaranty Trust New York
1981 J. P. Morgan Chase &
Co.
1986 Alexandra Department Store
Strategic Planning Manager
Russell Reynolds, Hong Kon
1986 . Y g g
Managing Director
1996 Bo Le Associates Ltd.
Bo Le Yau Cai Management Ltd.
1998 10 |- u Lan Hanag
Director

2008 10 Bo Le Leaders Ltd.
Giving Hand Ltd.

2009 .
1957 Director
Bo Le Associates Ltd.
21 |2009 ; ' 10,000
Director
Global Sage Ltd. Director
2011 12 g !
2011 12 Global Sage Japan
Global Sage Ltd. US
2011 12 .
Director
Global Sage Ltd. UK
2011 12 .
Director
Global Sage Pte Ltd.
2016 _ -
Singapore Director
Sage Executive Sdn Bhd
2018 Malaysia
Director
YCP Holdings Limited Y
2019 Asset Management Limited
Director
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021
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1998
2006
1998
2000
2001 12
2006
2006 10
2011
2013
2013 00
1976
2016 1
17 0,000

2018
2018 AlA Group Limited Group CDO
2020 KLKTN Limited CEO
2020

Tiger Gate Capital Limited
2020 _

Director

YCP Holdings Limited Y Asset
2020 Management Limited

Director

YCP Solidiance

2020
2020 INFORICH

Spiral Capital
2020
2021

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021
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1979

1979

1992 Rodamas Group Director
Business Compass Consultancy

1996

1998 10 |[Consolidated Foods Australia
Limited

Managing Director CEO

2001 ABR Holdings Limited CEO
2002 12 Intraco Limited CEO

APEC Business Advisory

2003 )
Council Member

2005 Heartware Network Trustee
Singapore Customs Advisory
2005 Committee

Committee Member

Singapore Business Federation

2007 12
CEO
Singapore International

1951 2008 _ )
7 19 Arbitration Centre Sole Member -

Youth Business Singapore

2008 ]
Chairman

2009 APEC Business Advisory Council
for APEC Year 2009
National Youth Achievement Award

2011 Singapore (NYAA)
Advisory Board

2011 Barterfli Holdings Pte Ltd
Chairman

2011

2012 SG21ST Pte Ltd Director

2012

2013 Nicore Resources Pte Ltd
Director

2013 10 [Visionedge Technologies Pte Ltd
Chairman

2014

JETRO

2016 Regina Global Holdings Pte Ltd

Chairman
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2016 11 [Asia Entrepreneurs Exchange
Chairman

2017 Temasek Polytechnic
Distinguished Adviser

2017

2017 ASTORISE MEDICAL Pte Ltd
Chairman

2017 L Crown Systems Pte Ltd
Chairman

2019 Blue Aqua International Pte Ltd
Corporate Adviser

2019 Stem-Cell United Limited
Adviser

2019 Luxcer echnology (Asia) Pte Ltd
Director

2020 ETQ Global Pte Ltd Adviser

2020 ETQ Global Pte Ltd
Director

2020 12 |[Silver Joy Pte Ltd
Director

2021 Link Capital Pte Ltd
Adviser

2021 10 |Agri Biotech Knowledge Centre
Limited Director

2022 YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
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12,465,600 JDR224,400 Y Asset
Management Limited 50.12%
2022 31 2022 12
2021 2022 12
2022 31 2023 12
€00
CEO
CEO

CEO

CFO
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10

10,000

10,000

APEC

60/302



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

ooooooo
©)
YCP Holdings Limited Y Asset Management Limited
2021

12

12 12

12 12

12 12

CEO CEO

a.
b.
C.
d.
e.
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YCP Holdings Limited Y Asset Management Limited
)
90 - 220 370
(10) (-) (25) (43)
37 - 39 -
() &) ® &)
127 - 259 370
(15) &) (30) (43)

2410

Ernst & Young a.

)
695 - 398 194
(80) &) (46) (22)
11 - - -
(€)) &) ) &)
705 - 398 194
(81) &) (46) (22)
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e.
©)
a.

2021 YCP Holdings Limited Y Asset Management
Limited
YCP Holdings Limited Y Asset Management Limited
2021
a

663 96 566 -
D) ayn (65) &)
62 62 - -
) ) &) &)
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] ) ] )
1 8,858 1 9,955
(1,019) (1,145)
)) » ¢ ))
) @) @)
_ - 107
) @) ( 12)
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38

193

40

1967

IFRS

59

2021

2020

321 ) 35

2021
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2021 12 31 2020
2021 2021 12 31

SFRS(I)

) 131
YCP Holdings Limited Y Asset Management
2020 12 31
2021
( 32 12
193
134 2021 12 30
115.02
132 133

IFRS
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
2021 2020
5 73,113,389 8,410 58,912,373 6,776
20,472,743 2,355 16,005,688 1,841
52,640,646 6,055 42,906,685 4,935
5 150,588 17 3,102,848 357
10,516,703 1,210 8,648,403 995
33,973,172 3,908 28,830,525 3,316
435,008 50 313,568 36
7,866,351 905 8,217,037 945
7 2,840 0 2,443 0
8 367,784 42 516,866 59
51,064 6 219,476 25
6 7,552,471 869 7,483,138 861
10 2,560,812 295 968,981 111
4,991,659 574 6,514,157 749
4,951,236 569 6,553,738 754
40,423 5 39,581 5
4,991,659 574 6,514,157 749
/ 11 31.05 35.72 41.27 47.47
/ 11 31.05 35.72 41.27 47.47
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

2021 2020
4,991,659 574 6,514,157 749
1,305,219 150 56,635 7
30,624 4 22,197 3
1,335,843 154 34,438 4
29 5,837 1 5,062 1
1,341,680 154 39,500 5
3,649,979 420 6,474,657 745
3,614,620 416 6,509,147 749
35,359 4 34,490 4

3,649,979 420 6,474,657 745
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

2021 2020 2021

12 926,494 107 1,409,912 162 - -
12 4,019,370 462 4,764,215 548 - -
13 13,686,920 1,574 11,758,830 1,353 - -

14 1,602,628 184 1545886 178 14,743 2
15 - - - ~ 13,748,950 1,581
17 303,557 35 283,117 33 443,620 51
16 - - - - - -

18 8,857,903 1,019 09,954,946 1,145 8,857,903 1,019

21 871,078 100 1,170,597 135 - -
28 1,338,808 154 1,237,353 142 - -

31,606,758 3,635 32,124,856 3,695 23,065,216 2,653

19 2,539,412 292 1,960,856 226 — —
20 7,786,056 896 6,964,543 801 - -

20 941,539 108 698,571 80 - -
21 2,313,857 266 2,837,030 326 1,505,102 173
22 - 521,648 60

23 38,661,010 4,447 9,906,705 1,139 27,818,166 3,200

52,241,874 6,009 22,367,705 2,573 29,844,916 3,433

24 2,532,537 291 2,012,490 231 - -
25 11,255,142 1,295 9,213,771 1,060 2,359,354 271
22 - - - - 11,737,089 1,350
26 5,494,354 632 4,072,753 468 - -
27 2,271,048 261 3,066,861 353 -

1,561,312 180 1,500,060 173 78,287 9

23,114,393 2,659 19,865,935 2,285 14,174,730 1,630

29,127,481 3,350 2,501,770 288 15,670,186 1,802

60,734,239 6,986 34,626,626 3,983 38,735,402 4,455
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2021 12 31

2021 2020 2021

25 544,847 63 664,467 76 - -
26 7,101,388 817 10,630,251 1,223 - -
27 1,927,478 222 1,797,991 207 - -
28 229,171 26 251,349 29 - -
29 124,991 14 100,992 12 - -

9,927,875 1,142 13,445,050 1,546 - -

50,806,364 5,844 21,181,576 2,436 38,735,402 4,455

30 32,992,969 3,795 - - 32,992,969 3,795

31 17,703,854 2,036 21,107,394 2,428 5,742,433 660

50,696,823 5,831 21,107,394 2,428 38,735,402 4,455
109,541 13 74,182 9 - -

50,806,364 5,844 21,181,576 2,436 38,735,402 4,455
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2021 12 31
31 32
2021 1 1 - 5169,320 368,043  15575,093 - 5,062 21,107,394 74,182 21,181,576
- (595) (42) (1,791) - (1 (2,428) ©) (2,436)
- - - 4951236 - - 4,951,236 40,423 4,991,659
- - - (569) - - (569) ®) (574)
- - 1,300,155 - - - 1,300,155 5,064 1,305,219
- - ( 150) - - - ( 150) (1 ( 150)
- - 30,624 - - - 30,624 - 30,624
- - (4 - - - (4 - )
29 - - - - - 5,837 5,837 - 5,837
- - - - - (1 (1 - (9
- - 1330779 4,951,236 - 5,837 3,614,620 35,359 3,649,979
- - ( 153) (569) - (1 (416) @) (420)
30 7,141,379 7,141,379 - - - - - - -
(821) ( 821) - - - - - - -
30 28,691,926 - - - - - 28,691,926 - 28,691,926
(3,300) - - - - - (3,300) - (3,300)
30 168,310 - - - - - 168,310 - 168,310
( 19 - - - - - ( 19 - ( 19)
32 - - - - 123,219 - 123,219 - 123,219
- - - - 14) - (14) - 14)
30 2,672,026 - - - - - 2,672,026 - 2,672,026
( 307) - - - - - ( 307) - ( 307)
2021 12 31 32,992,969 1,972,059 962,736 20,526,329 123,219 10,899 50,696,823 109,541 50,806,364
(3,795) ( 227) ( 111) (2,361) 14) (1 (5.831) (13) (5.844)
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2021 12 31
31
2020 1 1 4,343,625 407,572 9,021,355 - 13,772,552 108,672 13,881,224
(500) (47) (1,038) - (1,584) (12) (1,597)
- - 6,553,738 - 6,553,738 39,581 6,514,157
- - (754) - (754) ( 5) (749)
- 61,726 - - 61,726 5,091 56,635
- (" - - () () ()
- 22,197 - - 22,197 - 22,197
- (3) - - 3) - (3
29 - - - 5,062 5,062 - 5,062
- - = (1 (1 - (1
- 39,529 6,553,738 5,062 6,509,147 34,490 6,474,657
- ( 5) (754) (1 (749) (4 (745)
31 825,695 - - - 825,695 - 825,695
(95) - - - (95) - (95)
2020 12 31 5,169,320 368,043 15,575,093 5,062 21,107,394 74,182 21,181,576
(595) (42) (1,791) (1 (2,428) @) (2,436)
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
31 32
1 - - - - 1
(0) - - - - (0)
- - - 1,124,880 - 1,124,880
- - - ( 129) - ( 129)
- - 520,467 - - 520,467
- - ( 60) - - ( 60)
- - 520,467 1,124,880 - 1,645,347
- - ( 60) ( 129) - ( 189)
- 5,169,320 346,594 9,583,214 — 14,405,940
(595) ( 40) (1,102) - (1,657)
30 7,141,379 7,141,379 - - - -
(821) ( 821) - - - -
30 28,691,925 - - - - 28,691,925
(3,300) - - - - (3,300)
30 168,310 - - - - 168,310
(19 - - - - ( 19)
32 - - - - 123,219 123,219
_ - - - (14) (14)
30 2,672,026 - - - - 2,672,026
( 307) ( 307)
2021 12 31 32,992,969 1,972,059 867,061 8,458,334 123,219 38,735,402
(3,795) ( 227) ( 100) (973) (14) (4,455)
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

2021 2020
7,552,471 869 7,483,138 861
7 2,840 0 2,443 0
6 106,554 12 827,976 95

( )

( ) 6 18,224 2 466,537 54
- - 1,590,312 183
27 120,816 14 791,495 91
6 686,259 79 726,365 84
6 3,631,652 418 4,580,241 527
6 281,111 32 284,817 33
6 5,946 1 - -
6 43,378 5 59,486 7
6 3,101 0 - -
6 1,492 0 4,111 0
6 - - 31,828 4
6 72,599 8 31,142 4
( 6 5,263 1 40,202 5
( ) 6 51,882 6 76,064 9
6 - - 16,369 2
( ) 6 236,163 27 63,538 7
8 367,784 42 516,866 59
( 17 51,064 6 219,476 25
29 16,498 2 92,379 11
32 123,219 14 - -
12,884,178 1,482 10,404,571 1,197
475,140 55 19,800 2
249,844 29 _ _
743,180 85 790,024 91
1,320,537 152 131,816 15
789,363 91 46,949 5
2,289,407 263 455,338 52
- - 301,232 35
14,124,527 1,625 8,962,644 1,031
2,351,395 270 950,032 109
11,773,132 1,354 8,012,612 922
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

)
2021 12 31

2021 2020
2,840 0 2,443 0
- - 46,804 5
12 264,149 30 566,505 65
14 123,328 14 60,493 7
33 1,115,681 128 2,056,897 237
34 2,681 0 601,411 69
23 4,663 1 4,537 0
1,502,300 173 2,028,700 233
30 28,691,926 3,300 1,170,000 135
2,532,104 201 - -
2,860,372 329 2,936,156 338
5,519,733 635 4,388,736 505
3,603,846 415 3,796,142 437
27 104,090 12 147,840 17
30 168,310 19 344,305 40
263,694 30 369,026 42
19,360,521 2,227 4,939,893 568
29,631,353 3,408 1,044,019 120
9,678,340 1,113 8,145,175 937
796,796 92 489,146 56
38,512,897 4,430 9,678,340 1,113
23 38,512,897 4,430 9,763,255 1,123
26 - - 84,915 10

38,512,897 4,430 9,678,340 1,113
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0000000
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
1.
1.1

Y CP Holdings (Global) Limited 2021

Y Asset Management Limited ( YAM YCP
Holdings Limited
#05-21
2021 12 21
2021 12 31

12

751302
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2021 12 31
1.
1.1
#
YCP 29,800,000 — 100
Solidiance
YCP Solidiance 918,000 - 100
Limited
YCP Solidiance 5,469,864 - 100
(Shanghai) ( )
Limited
YCP Solidiance 638,469 100 -
Pte. Ltd.
YCP Solidiance, 5,000,000 - 100
Co., Ltd
YCP Solidiance 1,830,000UAE - 100
FZ LLC
(2020 : 1,000
UAE )
YCP Solidiance 200,000 - 100
Limited
SOLIA 10,000,000 100 -
YCP 40,000,000 100 -
Lifemate (2020

20,000,000 )
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2021 12 31
1.
1.1
#
55,000,000 - 100
40,000,000 - 100
YCP Education 130,000 100 -
Singapore Pte.
Ltd.
YCP Dining 812,060 100 -
Singapore Pte.
Ltd. (2020
672,060
)
Go Food Service 450,000 100 -
Pte. Ltd.
#it
Go Food
J-Foods Hong 20,360,966 100 -
Kong Limited
J- (2020
Foods 10,000 )
YCP 35,000,000 55 —
RLA Trading
9,000,000 100 -
(2020 :
50)
# 2020 12 31 2021 12 31
i Go Food

Go Food

771302
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2021 12 31
1.
1.1
50%
127 1,205,163 16 154,085
33
Aoyama Sweets Factory (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 300,000
10,438
34
J-Foods 100%
60 553,083 189 1,825,736
33
Y CP Education Limited Y CP Solidiance Pty.
Ltd F-Treatment 3,000 387
44.4 428,904 20
193,200 34
1.2
YAM

2021

YAM
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2021 12 31
1.
1.2
@ 2021
YAM
(b) 2021 YAM
(i)
YAM
(i) YAM
7,141,379 ( 30)

15,881,275 YAM

2021

2.1

SFRY(1) IFRS
SFRS(I) IFRS

SFRS()  IFRS IFRS
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2021 12 31

2.2

2021 1 1
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
2.
2.3
IFRS 3 2022 1 1
IAS 16 2022 1 1
IAS 37 2022 1 1
IFRS 2018 -2020 2022 1 1
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 17 2023 1 1
IAS 1 2023 1 1
IFRS 17 2023 1 1
IAS 1 IFRS 2
2023 1 1
IAS 8 2023 1 1
IAS 12
2023 1 1

IFRS 17 IFRS 17 IFRS 9 —
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

2.4
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2021 12 31

2.5
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2.5

2.6
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2.9
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2021 12 31

2.10

20%
10% 33%

20% 33%
16% 50%

89/302



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

ooo0000
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

211

(10 )
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2.
2.11

(10 )
2.12
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2.
2.13
(a)
(i) ( )
(ii) (FVOCI)

FVOCI
FVOCI
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2.
2.13
(a)
(i)

(b)

FVOCI
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2.13

(b)

2.14
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2021 12 31

2.14

12
12

90
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2.14

2.15
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2.
2.15

(@)

( )
10
212
(b)
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2.15
(b)
(
)
()

12

2.16
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2.19

2.20

2.21
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2021 12 31
2.
2.21
(@) -
(b) -
(i)
(ii)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)
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2.
2.21

9

(h)

(i)
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2.
2.22
)

2.23

(@)
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2.23

(@)

( MPF )
MPF
MPF

MPF

(b)

2003 13
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2.24

2.25

(@)

(b)
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2.25

(b)
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2021 12 31
2.
2.25

(c)

(

2.26
2.27

(@)

(b)
@0
(ii)
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2.

2.28

CEO
CEO

3.

31

2021 12 31
3,706,851 2020 : 3,087,189 28

3.2
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2021 12 31
3.
3.2

2021 12 31 13,686,920 2020 :11,758,830

13
2021 12 31
926,494 2020 :1,409,912 4,019,370 2020 4,764,215

12
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2021 12 31
3.
3.2
(
)
( GDP)
20

4.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)
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2021 12 31

2021

37,843,679 18,743,841 6,135,945 10,389,924 73,113,389
1,673,228 61,130 - 438,324 2,172,682

39,516,907 18,804,971 6,135,945 10,828,248 75,286,071

2,172,682

73,113,389
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2021 12 31
4,
2021 )
13,512,377 1,213,870 628931 1,899,282 17,254,460
3,803 - 1,460 - 5,263
( ) - - - 51,882 51,882
( ) - - - 236,163 236,163
- 43,878 - - 43,878
5,234 - - 712 5,946
- - - 3,101 3,101
2,099,912 66,319 368,634 1,783,046 4,317,911
186,512 26,032 51,857 16,710 281,111
1,076 - - 416 1,492
- - - 106,554 106,554
13,037 80 - 59,482 72,599
- - - 18,224 18,224
16,498 - - - 16,498
123,219 - - - 123,219
11,089,160 1,077,721 206,980 258,044 12,115,817
4,249,466
7,866,351
2,840
367,784
51,064
7,552,471
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2021 12 31

2021

28,218,321 5,630,998 6,509,914 15,566,994 55,926,227
233,647
303,557
27,852,495
83,848,632
15,952,906 4,856,866 4,979,862 5,515,852 31,305,486
233,647
1,970,429

33,042,268

69,521 3,253 72,231 566,301 711,306
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2021 12 31
4.

2020

32,436,346 15,946,922 3,839,344 6,689,761 58,912,373

1,618,339 47,664 1,187 398,333 2,065,523

34,054,685 15,994,586 3,840,531 7,088,094 60,977,896

2,065,523

58,912,373

11,828,266 ~ 625005 393,678 1,627,220 14,474,169

40,202 - - - 40,202

( ) - - - 76,064 76,064

( ) - - - 16,369 16,369

( ) - - - 63,538 63,538

- 59,486 - - 59,486

2,366,437 60,213 241,183 2,638,773 5,306,606

202,113 52,510 3,362 26,832 284,817

7,023 - 749 2,163 4,111

16,943 14,885 - - 31,828

- - - 827,976 827,976

27,097 38 1,571 2,436 31,142

- - - 1,590,312 1,590,312

4 - 85,133 381,400 466,537

92,379 - - - 92,379

9,210,674 437,949 236,586 1,609,931 11,495,140
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2021 12 31

2020

9,210,674 437,949 236,586 1,609,931 11,495,140
3,278,103

8,217,037

2,443

516,866

219,476

7,483,138

26,060,508 4,314,366 6,141,630 15,309,071 51,825,575
280,857

283,117

2,664,726

54,492,561

17,428,867 4,170,134 4,965,811 4,169,403 30,734,215
280,857

2,857,627

33,310,985

267,644 20,029 8,074 1,350,874 1,646,621

116/302



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

ooo0000
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
4.
(@)
2021 2020
46,667,706 37,220,689
10,289,777 9,485,139
12,479,093 9,531,422
1,237,501 1,046,873
413,138 282,930
1,852,475 1,329,768
173,699 15,552
73,113,389 58,912,373
(b)
2021 2020
9,020,518 6,272,121
1,224,548 3,132,630
10,293,903 10,338,766
- 18,443
20,538,969 19,761,960
10%

(2020
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

(@)

2021 12 31

22,546,137 - - — 22,546,137
15,297,542 - - — 15,297,542
— 18,743,841 - — 18,743,841
- - 6,135,945 — 6,135,945

- - - 6,623,213 6,623,213

2,744,279 2,744,279
- - - 1,022,432 1,022,432

37,843,679 18,743,841 6,135,945 10,389,924 73,113,389

19,679,578 18,626,828 6,135,945 2,225,355 46,667,706

6,006,497 - - 4,283,280 10,289,777
8,480,791 117,013 - 3,881,289 12,479,093
1,237,501 - - - 1,237,501
413,138 - - - 413,138
1,852,475 - - — 1,852,475
173,699 - - - 173,699

37,843,679 18,743,841 6,135,945 10,389,924 73,113,389

37,843,679 - - — 37,843,679

— 18,743,841 6,135,945 10,389,924 35,269,710

37,843,679 18,743,841 6,135,945 10,389,924 73,113,389
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2021 12 31

(@)

2020 12 31

18,811,206 - - — 18,811,206
13,625,140 - - — 13,625,140
— 15,946,922 - — 15,946,922
- - 3,839,344 - 3,839,344

5,191,284 5,191,284

1,284,446 1,284,446
_ _ - 15,204 15,204
- - - 198,827 198,827

32,436,346 15,946,922 3,839,344 6,689,761 58,912,373

16,964,808 15,852,405 3,839,344 564,132 37,220,689
6,297,208 4,672 - 3,183,259 9,485,139
6,499,207 89,845 - 2,942,370 9,531,422
1,046,873 - - — 1,046,873

282,930 - - - 282,930
1,329,768 - - - 1,329,768
15,552 - - - 15,552

32,436,346 15,946,922 3,839,344 6,689,761 58,912,373

26,184,805 - - 15,204 26,200,009

6,251,541 15,946,922 3,839,344 6,674,557 32,712,364

32,436,346 15,946,922 3,839,344 6,689,761 58,912,373
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2021 12 31
5.

(@)

2021 2020
7,563 365,871
(b)
30

30
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5.
(b)
30
30
2021 12 31

941,539 2020 698,571
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2021 12 31
5.
(b)
- 1
2021 12 31
2022 12 1,619,672 2020
1,488,737
2021 2020
106,554 827,976
33 - 1,590,312
34 18,244 466,537
# 270,606 218,023
4,760 -

150,588 3,102,848
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

2021 2020
( ) 8,856,175 6,627,142
( ) 6,193,503 3,011,229
( 9))*
22,840,468 21,283,497
2,416,479 1,685,575
29) 16,498 92,379
32 123,219 -
25,396,664 23,061,451
12 686,259 726,365
12) 3,631,652 4,580,241
4,317,911 5,306,606
1,451,540 1,027,656
371,682 263,090
161,374 133,516
1,492 4,111
72,599 31,142
- 31,828
( ) 12 51,882 76,064
( ) 14) - 16,369
( ) 12 236,163 63,538
43,878 59,486
5,946 -
14 3,101 -
( 14 281,111 284,817
20 5,263 40,202
33 - 1,590,312
34 18,224 466,537
106,554 827,976
2020 : 6,367,317 19,973,599 2020 : 16,694,134
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
7.
2021 2020
2,840 2,443
8.
2021 2020
( ) 258,661 369,026
( ) 27 104,090 147,840
5,033 -
367,784 516,866
9.
2021 2020
107,692 81,068
726,526 625,140
565 -

834,783 706,208
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

10.

2021 2020

) 2,541,927 1,749,665
) - 14,138

- 18,885 766,546

2,560,812 968,981
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

10.

2021 2020
7,552,471 7,483,138
1,283,920 1,234,718
1,237,401 591,393

73,456 593,273

220,755 36,883

- 14,138

8,681 36,214
71,916 225,551
203,740 369,862
155,421 221,610
21,793 96,210
685 45,223
2,560,812 968,981

2020
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11.

2021 12 31

2020 12 31

30
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2020

2021 2020

4,951,236 6,553,738

2021 2020

15,944,592 15,881,275

31.05 41.27

32
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
12.
2021 12
31
2020 12
31
2021
11

1,379,918 2,200,490 153,847 66,308 3,800,563 13,786,641 239,559 79,433 14,105,633 17,906,196

616,931 1,620,688 88,325 64,707 2,390,651 9,143,047 173,737 24,634 9,341,418 11,732,069

762,987 579,802 65,522 1,601 1,409,912 4,643,594 65,822 54,799 4,764,215 6,174,127
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ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

ooooooo
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
12.
2021 12 31
2021 1 1
762,987 579,802 65,522 1,601 1,409,912 4,643,594 65,822 54,799 4,764,215 6,174,127
60,284 191,321 12,544 — 264,149 3,435,458 — 63,595 3,499,053 3,763,202
33 4611 71,859 5,235 81,705 581,773 — 10,990 592,763 674,468
- 417 1,075 - 1,492 - - - - 1,492
- - - - - 793,117 - 6,311 799,428 799,428
34 - - 6,599 — 6,599 — - - - 6,599
383,212 264,405 37,689 953 686,259 3,579,551 30,158 21,943 3,631,652 4,317,911
4,741 713 492 - 5,946 - - - - 5,946
- 51,882 - 51,882 236,163 - - 236,163 288,045
38,480 34,196 4,300 118 77,094 158,940 5,212 5,266 169,418 246,512
2021 12 31
401,449 491,369 33,146 530 926,494 3,893,054 30,452 95,864 4,019,370 4,945,864
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
12.
2021 12
31
2021 12

31

1,375,744 2,410,540 163,921 66,308 4,016,513 10,884,499 224,504 142,368 11,251,371 15,267,884

974,295 1,919,171 130,775 65,778 3,090,019 6,991,445 194,052 46,504 7,232,001 10,322,020

401,449 491,369 33,146 530 926,494 3,893,054 30,452 95,864 4,019,370 4,945,864
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
12.
2020 12
31
2019 12
31
2020
11

521,460 1,593,891 132,259 64,371 2,311,981 10,491,418 191,432 53,106 10,735,956 13,047,937

232,465 1,321,826 56,911 64,371 1,675573 5,800,269 145,387 36,678 5,982,334 7,657,907

288,995 272,065 75,348 — 636,408 4,691,149 46,045 16,428 4,753,622 5,390,030

131/302



EDINETOOOO

ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

ooo0000
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
12.
2020 12 31
2020 1 1
288,995 272,065 75,348 - 636,408 4,691,149 46,045 16,428 4,753,622 5,390,030
380,109 163,163 23,233 - 566,505 3,580,255 14,191 51,116 3,645,562 4,212,067
33) 487,507 529,381 - 1,937 1,018,825 1,709,093 60,896 - 1,769,989 2,788,814
5,008 1,443 546 - 4,111 - - - - 4,111
- - - - - 800,927 26,201 3,787 830,915 830,915
34 3,343 13,230 - - 16,573 - - - - 16,573
392,189 301,703 32,147 326 726,365 4,540,756 29,995 9,490 4,580,241 5,306,606
807 74,158 1,099 - 76,064 63,538 - - 63,538 139,602
7,723 2,841 733 10 11,287 68,318 886 532 69,736 81,023
2020 12 31
762,987 579,802 65522 1,601 1,409,912 4,643,594 65,822 54,799 4,764,215 6,174,127
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2021 12 31
12.
2020 12
31
2020 12

31

1,379,918 2,200,490 153,847 66,308 3,800,563 13,786,641 239,559 79,433 14,105,633 17,906,196

616,931 1,620,688 88,325 64,707 2,390,651 9,143,047 173,737 24,634 9,341,418 11,732,069

762,987 579,802 65,522 1,601 1,409,912 4,643,594 65,822 54,799 4,764,215 6,174,127

133/302



EDINETOOOO

ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

ooo0000
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
12.
2021 12 31
9% 2020
12%
51,882 2020
76,064 236,163 2020 :63,538
13.
2021 2020
11
11,758,830 10,363,086
- 58,013
11,758,830 10,305,073
11 11,758,830 10,305,073
- 58,013
- 58,013
33 2,555,565 1,565,988
627,475 112,231
12 31 13,686,920 11,758,830
12 31
13,686,920 11,758,830
13,686,920 11,758,830
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ooooooo

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
13.

. —

[

[ ]

[ )

2021 12 31 3,404,099 8,551,594 1,620,143 13,686,920

2020 12 31 3,007,598 8,638,210 — 11,758,830

)] —

2020
12% 2020 :12%
i)
2020

12% 15% 2020 :15%
% % 2020 @ % %
% 2020 : %
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2021 12 31
13.
iii)
2020
15% 18% 2020 :15% 18%
% 12% 2020 : %
10%
% % 2020 % %
iv)
12%
% 28%
%

2021 12 31
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

13.

14.

2021 2020 2021

14,743 16,381 14,743
1,587,885 1,529,505 -

1,602,628 1,545,886 14,743
2021 2020 2021

16,381 15,479 16,381

1,638 902 1,638

14,743 16,381 14,743
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
14.
2021 12 31
2021 1 1
108,299 185,958 2,114,492 2,408,749
91,471 134,292 653,481 879,244
16,828 51,666 1,461,011 1,529,505
2021 1 1
16,828 51,666 1,461,011 1,529,505
103,679 19,649 - 123,328
33 - - 242,124 242,124
3,101 - - 3,101
16,564 29,624 234,923 281,111
940 3,823 18,097 22,860
2021 12 31 99,902 37,868 1,450,115 1,587,885
2021 12 31

163,397 160,874 2,336,323 2,660,594

63,495 123,006 886,208 1,072,709

99,902 37,868 1,450,115 1,587,885
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
14.
2020 12 31
2020 1 1
172,063 24,056 452,914 2,114,492 2,763,525
100,978 24,056 238,930 415,815 779,779
71,085 - 213,984 1,698,677 1,983,746
2020 1 1
71,085 - 213,984 1,698,677 1,983,746
18,595 - 41,898 - 60,493
33 - - 798 - 798
14,556 - 17,272 - 31,828
(
34) 48,300 - 93,858 — 142,158
11,370 - 87,234 186,213 284,817
1,511 - 14,858 - 16,369
2,885 - 8,208 51,453 40,360
2020 12 31 16,828 - 51,666 1,461,011 1,529,505
2020 12 31
108,299 — 185,958 2,114,492 2,408,749
91,471 — 134,292 653,481 879,244
16,828 - 51,666 1,461,011 1,529,505
2020 12 31

16,369
16,369
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2021 12 31
15.
2021
15,140,259
364,288
449,870
1,305,727
13,748,950
2021 31 YCP Lifemate 40 364,288
2021 12 31

2021 12 31

449,870
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2021 12 31
16.
2021 2020 2021
)
100
( ) 2020 :50)
33)
146,655
810,995
2021 50%

33
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ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)

oOoOooodn

17.

ARUKI

ARUKI

BARC

142/302

2021 2020 2021
303,557 283,117 443,620
25.0
25.0
Group
2021 2020
8,274 63,356
311,831 346,473
303,557 283,117
51,064 219,476
30,624 22,197
20,440 197,279
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ooo0000
YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
18.
2020 2021
8,857,903 9,954,946 8,857,903
2021 12 31
38

2021 12 31 8,857,903 2020

9,954,946 26
19.

143/302

2021 2020

132,664 200,468
2,406,748 1,760,388

2,539,412 1,960,856
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
20.
2021 2020
7842399 7,060,380
56,343 95,837
7786056 6,964,543
# 941,539 698,571
8727595  7.663114
"
2021
12 31 2021 12 31
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
20.
2021 2020
95,837 145,550
6 5,263 40,202
44,757 9,511
12 31 56,343 95,837
( )
(
)
2021 12 31
0.71% 0.24% 1.60% 12.53% 0.72%
6,644,759 917,191 259,194 21,255 7,842,399
) 47,299 2,242 4,138 2,664 56,343
2020 12 31

0.13% 0.21% 1.52% 28.29% 1.36%
5,336,258 1,074,949 363,991 285,182 7,060,380
) 7,118 2,247 5,515 80,957 95,837
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2021 12 31
21.
2021 2020 2021
667,709 1,012,243 -
2,517,226 2,995,384 21,392
a — — 1,483,710
3,184,935 4,007,627 1,505,102
871,078 1,170,597 -
2,313,857 2,837,030 1,505,102
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
@
22,
2021
a 521,648
b 11,737,089

(@)

(b) 1.85%  2.76%
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2021 12 31
23.
2021 2020 2021
38,512,897 9,763,255 27,818,166
148,113 143,450 -
38,661,010 9,906,705 27,818,166
148,113 143,450 -
38,512,897 9,763,255 27,818,166
(@) 2021 12 31 148,113 2020 :143,450
26
388,432

2020 : 525,353
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
24.
2021 2020
2,532,537 2,012,490
30
25.
2021 2020 2021
a 238,181 7,563 -
b 3,801,941 4,206,704 -
b) 7,198,014 5,084,329 2,233,823
c 561,853 579,642 -
d - - 125,531
11,799,989 9,878,238 2,359,354
544,847 664,467 -
11,255,142 9,213,771 2,359,354
€Y

(b)

(€
12 31
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

25.

2021 2020
579,642 381,791
15,494 179,112
7,413 -
- 14
40,696 18,753

12 31 561,853 579,642

(d)
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2021 12 31
26.
% 2021 % 2020
- - - 50-65 84,915
05-25 2022 3,780,389 0.5-25 2021 3,504,840
1.0-5.0 1,713,965 6.0 2021 482,998
5,494,354 4,072,753
2023 - 2022 -
05-25 2030 7,101,388 0.5-25 2030 9,664,254
- - - 6.0 2023 965,997
7,101,388 10,630,251

12,595,742 14,703,004
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2021 12 31
26.
05%  50% 2020 :05%  6.5%
2022 2030 2020 :2021 2030
@) 3,442,879 2020 : 5,100,464
8,857,903 (2020 : 9,954,946
18
(b) 1,657,816 2020 2,779,984
©) 2,312,819 2020 : 9,423,796
(d) 2020 : 84,915
148,113 2020 : 143,450 23

35
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
27.
2021 2020
2,368,509 2,271,048 3,131,106 3,066,861
1,523,889 1,698,484 1,604,344 1,568,994
444,333 228,994 236,343 228,997
4,336,731 4,198,526 4,971,793 4,864,852
138,205 106,941
4,198,526 4,864,852
2,271,048 3,066,861
1,927,478 1,797,991
2021 12 31
2021 2020

4,864,852 4,830,675

3,499,053 3,645,562

33 592,763 1,769,989
872,027 862,057

104,090 147,840

3,707,936 3,943,982

120,816 791,495

161,453 68,320

12 31 4,198,526 4,864,852
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
27.
2021 2020
8 104,090 147,840
6 3,631,652 4,580,241
6 371,682 263,090
6 72,599 31,142
120,816 791,495
236,163 63,538
4,150,172 4,232,072
2021 4,079,618
2020 : 4,207,072 2021

3,449,053 2020 : 3,645,562
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
28.
2020 1 1 23,881 288,775 851,827 104,078 1,268,561
34 - - - 24,185 24,185
10 22,131 31,657 314,557 38,506 406,851
552 8,747 39,602 4,831 36,238
2020 12 31
2021 1 1
2,302 248,371 576,872 94,588 922,133
33 - - 13,466 1,594 15,060
10 43 31,707 346,279 61,055 375,584
44 - 74,499 12,382 86,925
2021 12 31

2,215 216,664 862,118 144,855 1,225,852
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
28.
2020 1 1 - 188,715 365,610 880,097 1,434,422
33 - - 20,061 - 20,061
10 20,323 313,506 360,959 335,093 359,695
29 1,428 - - - 1,428
467 20,050 32,299 39,715 92,531
2020 12 31
2021 1 1
22,218 522,271 778,929 584,719 1,908,137
33 - 282,654 13,928 12,908 309,490
10 3,630 62,500 13,093 303,662 356,699
29 1,646 - - - 1,646
9,299 83,383 74,381 73,420 240,483
2021 12 31

18,195 784,042 705,383 827,869 2,335,489
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2021 12 31
28.
2021 2020
1,338,808 1,237,353
229,171 251,349
1,109,637 986,004
2021 2020 2021
3,706,851 3,087,189 -
2,430,937 2020 : 2,002,057
10 1,275,914
2020 :1,085,132
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2021 12 31
29.
2003 13
Kantor Konsultan Aktuaria Steven & Mourits
2021 2020
11 100,992 -
- 38,325 87,972
- 26,951 -
5,124 4,407
- 295 -
- 1,675 24,367
- 9,453 30,857
18 2,123

12 31 124,991 100,992
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2021 12 31
29.
2021 2020
Uss$ Us$
11,374 87,972
5,124 4,407
16,498 92,379
28 3,630 20,323
12,868 72,056
/
)
- 295 -
- 1,675 24,367
- 9,453 30,857
28 1,646 1,428
5,837 5,062
2021 2020
% 7.60 7.04
56 56

% 10 10
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2021 12 31
29.
2021
/
/
%
1/(1) (21,706)/27,140
1/(1) 26,587/(21,715)
2020
/
/
%
1/(1) (18,663)/23,467
1/(1) 22,533/(18,363)
30.

2021

119,626,676 2020
32,992,969
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2021 12 31
30.
a 1 1
b 15,881,275 7,141,379
c 212,462 168,310
d 32,462 162,310
e 3,925,400 28,529,615
f - 2,672,026
2021 12 31 19,626,676 32,992,969
@ 2021 0.75
2021
0.75
(b) 2021 i
YAM
ii YAM
YAM 14,550,000 0.33 1,331,275
(© 2021 10 10 21 180,000 32,462
168,310
(d) 2021 11 16 32,462 162,310
(e 7.268 3,925,400
28,529,615
()
2,672,026
2021 12 31
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2021 12 31

31.

YAM

2020 12 31 YAM
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2021 12 31
32.
2021
[
i
2021 1 1 - -
5.00 1,088,579
5.00 3,201
2021 12 31 5.00 1,085,378
2021 12 31
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
32.
851,954
0.78 2021 12 31 123,219
2021
% 4.37
% 39.01
% 1.17
6.5
4.96
1,085,378
1,085,378

5,426,890
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited
2021 12 31
33.
i) 2021 50%
16 154,085
50%
i) 2021
100% 127
1,205,163
i) 2020 31 [
J-Foods Hong Kong Limited JFoods 100%
ii J-Foods
60
553,083
1,590,312
iv) 2020 31 [
100% i
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

33.

2021
12 32,461 49,244 81,705
14 - 242,124 242,124
28 292,480 1,950 294,430
12 49,920 542,843 592,763
48,530 - 48,530
13,934 131,712 145,646
- 41,899 41,899
89,482 - 89,482
27 49,920 542,843 592,763
4,237 - 4,237
215,996 22,754 238,750
1,897,146 ~ 1,897,146

1,640,492 444,175 1,196,317
1,794,577 760,988 2,555,565

154,085 1,205,163 1,359,248

154,085 1,205,163 1,359,248
89,482 - 89,482

154,085 - 154,085

89,482 1,205,163 1,115,681
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
33.
2020
J-Foods

12 325,541 693,284 1,018,825
14 690 108 798
28 20,061 - 20,061
12 254,340 1,515,649 1,769,989
63,786 16,936 80,722

153,039 1,516,184 1,669,223

48,158 72,204 120,362

48,452 273,470 321,922

27 254,340 1,515,649 1,769,989
172,997 134,668 307,665

202,797 294,123 496,920

28 24,185 - 24,185
259,748 2,143,395 2,403,143

5 - 1,590,312 1,590,312
13 1,565,988 - 1,565,988
1,825,736 553,083 2,378,819
1,825,736 553,083 2,378,819

48,452 273,470 321,922

1,777,284 279,613 2,056,897
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2021 12 31
33.
2021 12 31
1,022,432 9,910
1,108,899 90,782 2021
2021 12 31
73,285,801 4,989,870
2020 12 31 J-Foods
3,171,262 751,473
587,008 113,622 J-Foods
2020 2020 12 31

60,775,719 6,280,076
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
34.
2021 2020
12 6,599 16,573
14 - 142,158
3,182 27,849
16,686 25,464
312 72,617
7,757 21,084
2,790 10,732
3,084 62,935
- 58,539
- 17,581
28,662 155,958
18,224 466,537
10,438 622,495
2021 2020
10,438 622,495
7,757 21,084
2,681 601,411
35.
(@)
3,499,053 2020 : 3,645,562 3,499,053 2020 : 3,645,562
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2021 12 31
35.
(b)
)
2020 1 1 4,830,675 15,275,072
3,796,142 1,452,580
3,645,562 -
33 1,769,989 -
862,057 -
34 - 58,539
147,840 369,026
147,840 369,026
791,495 -
68,320 854,136
2020 12 31 2021 1 1 4,864,852 14,618,089
3,603,846 2,659,361
3,499,053 -
33 592,763 1,897,146
872,027 -
104,090 258,661
104,090 258,661
120,816 -
161,453 1,260,132
2021 12 31 4,198,526 12,595,742
(©)
2021 2020
371,682 263,090
3,707,936 3,943,982
4,079,618 4,207,072
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36.

(@ 2020 11 13
125,000

(b)

37.

YAM

25,000

2021 2020
3,467,164 2,918,640
9,308 2,170
3,476,472 2,920,810

2021 2020
8,857,903 9,954,946
7,786,056 6,964,543
2,517,226 2,995,384
38,661,010 9,906,705
57,822,195 29,821,578
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
37.
2021 2020
2,532,537 2,012,490
5,805,081 4,831,610
12,595,742 14,703,004
4,198,526 4,864,852
25,131,886 26,411,956
38.
1- ( )
2 —
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
38.
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 12 31 8,857,903 - - 8,857,903

2020 12 31 9,954,946 — - 9,954,946
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2021 12 31
39.
26
100
125,957 2020 : 147,030
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

39.

2021 12 31
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
39.
12
1 2 3
2021 12 31
* - - - 7,842,399 7,842,399
* - - - 941,539 941,539
- * 2,517,226 - - - 2,517,226
38,661,010 - - — 38,661,010
41,178,236 - — 8,783,938 49,962,174
12
1 2 3
2020 12 31
* - - - 7,060,380 7,060,380
* - - - 698,571 698,571
- ** 2,995,384 - - - 2,995,384
9,906,705 - - - 9,906,705
12,902,089 — - 7,758,951 20,661,040

20

**
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

39.

20
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
39.
( )
1
1 5 5
2021
- 2,532,537 - - 2,532,537
— 5,805,081 - — 5,805,081
1,723,624 3,952,707 6,267,013 1,117,332 13,060,676
- 2,368,509 1,927,478 - 4,336,731
1,723,624 14,658,834 8,235,235 1,117,332 25,735,025
2020
- 2,012,490 - - 2,012,490
- 4,831,610 - - 4,831,610
84,915 4,305,903 9,856,994 1,230,462 15,478,274
- 3,131,106 1,840,687 - 4,971,793

84,915 14,281,109 11,697,681 1,230,462 27,294,167
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2021 12 31
39.
2021 12 31 18
2021 / 2020 /
28,792 30,670/27,013 27,444 27,603/16,358
2021
18 8,857,903 442,895
2020
18 9,954,946 497,747

178/302




EDINETOIOICIC)
O000000000000000000000C0(E37220)
ooo0000

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31

39.
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

2021 12 31
40.
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 2020
32,992,969 -
17,703,854 21,107,394
50,696,823 21,107,394
41.
2022 18
7.247 364,400
2,640,718
42.
2021
43.

2022 31
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¥CP Holdings (Global) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
uss uss
Revenua 5 73113380 58912373
Costof sales (20,472,743) (16.005,688)
Gross profit 528408458 4200868605
Other income and gains 5 150,588 3,102,848
Selling and distribution expenses (10,516,703)  (5,648.403)
Administrative expenses (33873,172) (28,830,525)
Other operaling expenses {435,008) (313,568)
OPERATING PROFIT 7,866,351 8,217,037
Finance income 7 2,840 2443
Finance costs 8 (367,784) (516,866)
Share of profit/{loss) of associates 51.084 {210.476)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX a 7.552.471 7.483,138
Income tax expense 10 (2,5960.812) (968,981)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,991 858 6,514,157
Attributabla to:
Owmners of the parent 4,951,236 6,563,738
MWon-controlling interests 40423 (39.581)

4,991,650 6.514,157

Eamings per share attributable to owners of the parent
Basic eamings per share (cents) 11 .05 41.27
Diluted samings per share (cents) 11 31.05 41.27
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¥CP Holdings (Global) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incame (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Hote 2021 2020
uss Uss
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,991,659 6.514,157
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cther comorefensive income ihat may be reclassified (o
prafit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on transiation of financial stataments (1,305.219) (56,635)
Share of other comprehensive (losspincome of assodiates (30.624) 22187
Mat other comprehensive loss that may be reciassified o
profit or loss in subsequent periods (1,335,843 (34,438)
Cther comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
prafit or l6ss in subsequent panods:
Remeasurement loss on defined benafit liatlities, net of tax 29 {3,837) (5.062)
OTHER COMPRERENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR., NET
OF TAX {1,341 B80) (38,500)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 3840870 6474857
Attributable to:
Orwiners of the parent 3,614,620 6.509,147
MNen-controlling interests 35,359 {34.480)
3,549,979 6.474 857

182/302

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)
oOoOooodn

¥CP Holdings (Global) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2021

Notes Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss Uss uss
NOM-CURREMNT ASSETS
Praparty, plant and aquipmeant 12 828484 1408812 -
Right-of-use assets i2 4,018,370 4,764 215 -
Goodhenll 13 13,686,920 11,758,830 -
Other ntangible assats 14 1,602 628 1,545 BBE 14,743
Invesiments in subsidiaries 15 - = 13,74B.950
Invesiments in associates 17 303,557 283117 443820
Investment in a joint veniure 16 - - -
Equily investmant at fair value through profit or
loss 18 8.657.203 9954848 8,857,903
Prepaymanis, deposits and other receivablas 21 Br1,078 1,170,587 -
Defered tax assels 28 1,338,808 1,237,353 -
Total non-current assels 31,608,758 32124856 23085216
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 18 2538412 1960856 -
Trade receivables 20 7.7TEE,056 6,964 543 -
Conitract assels 20 G41,538 628 571 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 3 2313857 2837030 1,505,102
Lean to a subsidiary 22 - - 521,648
Cash and bank balances 23 38,661,010 9906.705 27818166

Total current assets 52,241,874 22367705 29844 916

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payabies 24 2,532,537 2012490 -
Other payaties and accruals 25 11255142  82137TT1 2358354
Loan from a subsidiary 22 - = 11,737,089
Interest-bearing bank and other bormawings 28 5484 354 4072753 -
Lease liabilities 7 2,271,048 3,066,861 -
Tax payable 1,561,312 1,500,060 Tg287
Total currant hiabilities 23,114,393 19865935 14,174,730
MET CURRENT ASSETS 20127481 2501770 15,670,186
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 60734239 34626626 38735402

=10 -
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NOM-CURREMNT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing barik and other bormowings
Lease liabilities

Defemed tax labilties

Defined benefit liabiities

BENBEN

Total non-currant liabiies
MET ASEETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 30
Reserves 5 |

Non-controdling intenests

TOTAL EQUITY

Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss Uss uss
544 B4T 664,467 =
7,101,388 10,630,251 e
1,027 478 1,787,891 .
228171 251,349 -
124,881 100,502 -
9927875 13445050 -
50,808,384 21,181,576 38735402

32,992 969 - 32992969
17,703,854 21107384 5742433
30696823 21107384 38735402

109,541 74,182 =
50806364 21181576 38735402

-1 -
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¥CP Holdings (Global) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2024 2020
Uss USs
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 755241 7483138
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income 7 {2.840) {2,443}

Fair value loss/(gain) on an equity investiment at fair valug

through profit or loss ] 106,554 {B27 976}
Loss/{gain) on dispoesal of subsidianes and businesses ] 18.224 (466,537)
Gain on bargain purchase ] - (1,580,312)
Covid-18-related rent concessions from lessors s {120,818) (791,4935)
Degpreciation of propery. plant and equipmeant & 686,250 726,365
Depreciaton of right-of-use assets 4] 3831852 4,580,241
Amartisation of other intangible assats -] 2811 284 817
Wiie-off of property, plant and equipment 4] 5,846 -
Write-off of inventorias ] 43,878 59 486
Write-off of intangible assets 51 3101 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -] 1,492 4111
Loss on disposal of other intangible assels -] - 31,828
Gain on termination of leases i (72,589) (31,142)
Provision fon{reversal of) impairment of trade receivables 1] 5,263 (40,202}
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 5] 51,6882 76,064
Impairment of ather intangible assats 6 = 16,3689
Impairment of nght-ol-use assets & 236,163 63,538
Finance costs 8 367,784 518,865
Share of (profit)icss of associates, net 17 {51.064) 218,476
Defined banefit axpanses 29 16,498 82378
Equity-settied share option expense az 123,218 -

Operating cash inflows before changes in working
capital 12884178 10404571

Changes in working capital:

Decrease in prepayments, daposits and other receivables 475,140 19,800

Increase in confract assets (240 844) -

Increase in inventories (743,180) (790,024)

{Increase Vdecrease in rade receivables (1,320,537) 131,816

Increaseddecrease) in trade payables 788,363 (46,849)

Increaseldecrease) in other payables and accruals 2280407 (455,338)

Decrease in an amount due to a director - (301,232)

Cash flows generated from operations 14,124 527 8,062 844

Income tax paid (2,351,385) (850,032)

Met cash flows generated from operating activities 11,773,132 8,012812

- 15 =
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¥CP Holdings (Global) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interast recaived
Dividend received from an associate
Purchases of property, plant and eguipment 12
Purchases of other intangible assels 14
Acruisitions of subsidiaries and a business 33
PFroceed from disposal of subsidiaries and businesses 34
{Increase ydecrease in plecged time deposits 23

MNet cash flows used in investing activities

FINAMNGING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of shares a0
Share issue expenses

New interest-bearing bank and other barmowings

Repayment of inferest-bearing bank and other bormowings
Principal porion of lease payments

Interest on lease liabilities 27
Repurchase of shares 30
Interest paid

Met cash flows generated from/jused in) financing
activities

MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalants at beginning of year
Elfect of foreign exchange rale changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

AMALYEIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash aguivalanis 23

Bank overdrafts 26

Cash and cash equivalants as stated in the consolidated
statemant of cash flows

- 16 -
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2021 2020
uss uss
2.840 2,443
K 48,804
{264, 145) (566,505)
(123,328) (B0,493)
(1,115681)  (2.056,887)
2881 801,411
(4,883 4,537
(1,502.3000  (2.028,700)
28691826 1,170,000
(2,532,104) -
2860372 2036156
(5,519,733)  (4.388,736)
(3,803,848)  (3.796,142)
(104,090) (147,840}
{(1BB310)  (344,305)
{263,694) (368,026)
19,360,521 (4.830.803)
20831353 1,044,019
DETE340  B.145175
(736,796) 488,148
38512897 9,678,340
38512897 8.763,255
- (84,915)
38512897 9,678,340
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION
1.1 Corporate information

¥CP Holdings (Global) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as & public limited |kability
company domiciled in Singapore on 5 March 2021.

The Company was listed on the Molhers market of Tokyo Stock Exchange ("TSE") on
21 December 2021.

Thea regisiered office of the Company is located at 3 Fraser Street, DUO Tower, #05-21,
Singapore 188352, In the opinion of the direclors, the Company’s immediate and ulimate
holding company is ¥ Asset Management Limited (“YAM®, formerdy known as "Y'CP Holdings
Limited®}, a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The principal activitlies of the Company are those of investment holding and provision of
management services o group companies,

Tha Company’s subsidiaries are involved in the following principal activities:

. pravision of management and advisory services;

. devalapment, production and sale of natiural and ofganic personal cane ploducts;
- operation of vetarinary hospatal and pet care busingss;

* operation of restaurants and franchise system in the food and beveraga industry;
* producticn, sale and distribution of food products;

* trading and manufactunng of Japanese-style dessens and conlectionary products;
® provision of supporting services for columbarium; and

. provision of Japanese-style early education senvices.

The Company was incorporated for the purpase of acquinng the existing operating group of
subsidianes as detailed below, pursuant io the Reorganisation Exercise as disclosed in
Mote 1.2

- 17 =
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION (continued)

1.1 Corporate information (continued)

Particulars of principal subsidianes are as follows:

YCP Solidiance,
Inc

YCP Solidsance
Lirrited

YCP Solidiance
{Shanghad)
Limited

YCP Saolidiance
Pie, Lid.

Y¥CP Solidiance,
Co., Lid

¥CP Solidiance
FZLLC

YCP Solidiance

Lirmited

S0UA_ Inc.

YCP Lifemate, Inc,

Place of
incorporation/ Issued
registration ordinary/
and registered
aparations share capital
Japan Japanese Yen
(~JEY”)
28,800,000
Hang Kang Linited States
Dollar ("USS7)
918,000
The People’s Renminbi
Republic of ("RMB")
China ("PRC") 5469 064
Singapore  Singapore Dolla
'5G07)
638 489
Thailand Thai Baht
5,000,000
United Arab Arab Emirate
Emirates Dirham [“AED")
1,830,000 (2020:
AED 1,000)
United States of US5200,000
America
Japan JPY 10,000,000

Japan JEY40,000,000

- 18 -

Percontage of

equity attributable
to the Company®  Principal activitios

Direct

100

100

100

191/302

Indirect
100

100

100

100

Provision of
I'!'IBI'IH[EH‘EI‘I! and
advisory senvices

Prowision af
managemant and
atviSOry SErvices

Provision of
managemen! and
advisory services

Prowision ol
managerment and
advisory services

Provision of
manageament and
advisory senvices

Provision af
management and
advisory services

Prowision al
management and
advisory services

Development,
production and sale
of natwral and

arganic producls

Operation of
velerinary hoapital
and pel care
business
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION (continued)

Issued
ordinary/

registered  equity attributable

share capital

JPYS5,000,000

JPY40,000,000

SGD130,000

SGOE12,060
(2020
5G606T2,060)

SG0450.000

Hong Kong
Diollar {"HKS")
20,360,966
{2020:
HK$10,000)

JPY35,000,000

1.1 Corporate information {continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and

Hamo aparations

Lifemate Japan

Veterinary

Hospital Group,

Ing.

Kainu Step Inc. Japan

¥'CP Education Singapore

Singapore Fte.

Ltd,

YCP Dining Singapare

Singapore Ple.

Lid.

Ga Food Servien Singapare

Pte. Lid. {*Go

Food 1™

J-Foods Hong Haong Kong

Kong Limited

{"J-Foods"}

YCP RLA Trading Japan

Ine.

Musashino Gobya Japan

KK 'MG)

JPYS,000,000

Parcentage of

to the Company®  Principal activities

Direct

100

100

100

100

100
{2020
50)

Indirect
100

Operation of
velerinary hospital

Operation of pat cans
business

Provision af
Japanese-style early
educalion services

Operation of
reslauranis and
franchise system in
the food and
beverage industry

Production, sale and
distribution of food
producs

Operation of
restaurants and
franchise system in
the focd and
bevarage indusiry

Trading and
production of
Japanese-slyle
confectionery
products

Provision af

supporing services
o columbarnum

= The percenlage of equily atiributable to the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are the same unless othensise stated.

The Group entered into several agreements with the non-cantrolling shareholder (o obtain

present access to enlire retums of Go Food, Accordingly, in the opinion of the direciors,
Go Food is a whally-owned subsidiary of the Group,

- 19 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION (continued)
1.1 Corporate information {continued)

Dwring the: financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired a pel care hospital
and remaining 50% equity interest in MG with cash considerations of JPY 127,000,000
(equivalent to USS1,.205,163) and JPY 16,000,000 (equivalent to USS154,085), respectively.
Further details of the acguisitions are included in Mote 33 (o the financial stalemants.

DCuring the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of Aoyama Sweels
Factory (Thailand) Co., Ltd. at consideration of THEB300,000 {equivakent to LISS10.438).
Furiher details of the disposals are included in Note 34 to the financial statements.

During the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2020, the Group acguired 100% equity interest
in J-Foads and Ecoroguard Co. Lid, (“Ecoroguard”) with considerations in the form of cash
amounted 1o JFYE0,000,000 (equivalent to LSE553.083) and JPY 159,000,000 (equivalent
to US%1,825,728), respectively, Further details of the acquisitions are included in Note 33 1o
the financial stalements.

During the financial year enced 31 December 2020, the Group disposed of YCP Education
Limited, YCP Solidiance Pty. Lid., F-Treatment, Inc. and a pel care hespilal, at
considerations of HKS3.000 (equivalent 1o WSS387), SGDS5S (equivalent to USS4),
JPY44. 400,000 (equivalent to USS428904) and JPY20,000,000 (equivalent to
US5193,200), respectively. Further details of the disposals are included in Note 34 1o the
financial statements.

1.2 The Reorganisation Exercise

Pursuant to the Group rearganisation during the curren! year as further detalled below, the
Company becama the holding company of all companies now comprising the Group. Tha
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulling from the reorganisation is
regarded as a confinuing entity, accordingly, the consolidated financial statemants have been
prepared as if the Company had aways been the holding company of the Group.

Prige 10 the incorporation of the Company and the completion of the reorganisation exercise
(the "Reorganisation Exedscise™), the operaling activities of the Group were carried oul by
YAM and fs subsidiaries.

As part of the Recrganisation Exercise, the Company was incorporated in Singapore on 5
March 2021. Following the incorporation of the Company, all assets and liabilifes ncluding
group management service business and its subsidiaries owned by YAM, except for the
derivative financial instruments, other kabilties and employee share oplions, were
transfemred to the Company, The objective of the Reorganisation Exercise was io establish
the Company as the holding company of the subsidianes now comprising the Group, in
preparation for the proposed listing of the Company's shares on tha Mothars market of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange. The major steps of the Reorganisation Exercise involved the
follcwing:
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION (continued)
1.2 The Reorganisation Exercise {continued)

(a) ©On 5 March 2021, the Company was incorporated 85 a public company limited by
shares domiciled in Singapore with SG01 share capital issue and allatted 10 YAM.

(b))  On 1 April 2021, the Company enlered inlo a sale and purchase agreement with YAM
in relation to the acquisition of:

(i) the entire assets and habilties including the group management service
business owned by YAM, except for ihe dervative financial instruments, other
liabilties and employes share options; and

(iy ihe entire share ownership of the subsidianes, joint venture and associales
owned by YAM.

In consideration for the transfer of the above assels and kabilites, 15,881,275 shares
with a fotal value of USET, 141,378 (Note 30) were allotled by the Company to YAM.
As a result, the Company became the holding company of the subsidianes now
comprising the Group.

The Reorganisation Exercise is considered to be a business combination invobving
anlities or businesses under commen controd and is accounted for by applying the
poaling of interasts method, Accordingly, tha assels and Eabiltes of ihesa businasses
and enlities ransfemed have been included in the consclidaled financial statements al
their camying amounis. Although the Reorganisation Exercise occurred in 2021, the
consolidaled financial slalements present the financial posilion and financial
performance as if the businessas had always been consolidated sinca the baginning
of thie earliest period prasemted.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

219 Basis of preparation
The cansolidated financial stalements of (he Group and the statement of financial position of
the Company have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (International) ("SFRS(I)") and International Financial Reporting Standards
{(IFRS"). SFRES(1} comprise standards and interpretations that are equivalent o IFRS,

All references to SFRS(1) and IFRS are subsequently referred 1o as IFRS in these financial
slatements unless olherwise specified,

Tha consalidated financial statemants have been prepared under the histoncal cost basis
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

Thea consolidated financial statements are presented in USS, unless otherwise stated,

-2 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
22  Adoption of new and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopled are consistant with those of the previous financial year
except that in the current financial year, ihe Group has adopled all the new and amended
standards which are relevant to the Group and are effective for annual financial periods
begmning on or after 1 January 2021. The adoption of thése standards did not have any
material effect on the financial performance or positon of the Group

23 Standards issued but not yet effective
Tha Group has nol adopled the following standards applicable (o the Growp that have been

issued bul not yeat affective:
Effective for annual

2.4

periods beginning

Description on or after
Amendments to IFRS 3; Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments o 1AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment—Procesds

before Intended Use 1 danuary 2022
Amendments o 1AS 3T: Onerous Contracts=—Cost of Fulfiling a

Contract 1 January 2022
Annual Improvements (o IFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 2B: Sale or Coninbution of Assats Date to ba

between an Investor and its Assocale or Join Venlure determined
IFRS 17 Insurance Conracts 1 January 2023
Amendments to 1AS 1: Classification of Liablitles as Current or

Mogi-current 1 January 2023
Amendments o IFRS 17 1 January 2023

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendmeants to 1AS 8; Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to 1AS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to IFRS 17: Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9
— Comparative Infarmation

1 January 2023
1 January 2023

1 January 2023
Date to be
detarminsad

The directors axpect that the adoplion of the standards above will have no matedial impact

on ihe financial statements in the year of initial application,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staternenis comprise the financlal statements of the company and
entities (including structured entities) contralied by the company and its subsidiaries. Control

is achieved when the company:

- Has power over the investes;

® s exposed, or has rights, o variable retumns from its invalvenent with the investes;

and
- Has the ability 1o use ils power to affect s retumns.
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Basis of consclidation (continued)

The company reassesses whether of not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
Indicate that there are changes o ona or more of the three alements of contral listed above.

Whien the company has less than a magorty of the voting rights of an investes, it has power
over the investee when the voling rights are sufficient lo give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant actvities of the investee unilaterally. The company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the company's voling rights in an investes
ane sufficiant Lo give il power, including:

. The size of the company's holding of voting rights relalive to the size and dispersion
of haldings of the other vate holders,

. Patential voting rights held by the company, other vole holders or other parties;

. Rights. arising frem other contractual armrangements; and

* Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the company has, or does
nat have, the eurrent abilty to direct the relevant activities at the lime that decisions
need to be made, including vating patterns at previowus shareholders’ maetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the company obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, incomea and
expenses of 8 subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the wear are included in the
consclidated statement of profit or loss and olher comprehensive incoame from the date he
company gains controd until the date when the company ceases 1o conlrol the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring
their sccounting policies in ling with the group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabiltes, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between the members of tha group are eliminated on consoldation.

Mon-controlling intérests in subsidiaries are identified separaiely from the group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-controdling shareholders thal are present ownership inlerests
entitling thair holders to a propartionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initally be
measured al fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, The choice of measurement is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisiion basis. Olher non-coentrolling interests are initially measwred at fair
value. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the
amoun! of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controliing interests' share of
subsequent changes in aquity.

Profit or loss and each componant of olher comprehensive income are atfributed to the
owners of the company and 1o the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of

subsidiaries is atiribuied o the owners of the company and to the non-controlling interesis
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a defict balance.

- 23 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Basis of consclidation (continued)

A change in the ownership interast of a subsidiary, without a boss of conbrod, is accounted for
as an equily ransaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

-  derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and Babilties of the subsidiary al their
carmying amounts at the date when control is lost;

- derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interesi:

- derecognises the cumulative iranstation diferences recorded in equily;
- recognises the fair value of the consideration recaived,

- recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or koss;

- reclassifies the Groups share of companents previously recognised in other
comprehensive income o profit or 0SS or revenue resenes, as appropriate.

2.5 Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acqussition method. The consideration
transfarrad s measured ai the acquisition date fair value which is the sum af the acouisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, labilties assumed by the Group to the
former awners of the acquires and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measume the non-controfling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s idenfifiable net assets. All other
components of non-contrelling interests are measurad at fair value, Acguisition-related costs
ara expensed as incurred.

Tha Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of actvities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribule 1o
ihe ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and labilifies assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic dreumstances and perinent conditions as at the acquisition date.  This includes
the: separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquires,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is
remeasured al its acquisition date fair value and any resulling gain or loss s recognised in
prafit or loss.

Any contingent consideration fo be transferred by the acquirer is recognised al fair value at
the acquisition date, Contingent consideration classified as an asset or lability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in prafit or loss, Cantingent consideration
that is classified as equily is not remeasured and subsequent setiement is aceounted for
within equity,
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Business combinations and goodwill {continued)

Goodwill i5 inifislly measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the conssderation
fransfemad, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acguires over the idemtifiable net assets
acquired and abiltes assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other ilems is bower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or boss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After inifial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in carcimstances indscate that the carmying value may be impaied. The Group perfarms ils
annual impairmant test af goodwill as at 31 December.  For the purpase of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generaling units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected 10 benefit from the synergies of the combination, irespective of whather other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units,

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) 1o which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amaount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment 0ss 18 recognised. Animpairment 1085 recognised for goodwll s not
reversed in a subssquent period.

Where goadwill has been allocated 1o a cash-genarating wnil (o group of cash-generaling
units) and parl of the operation within that und is disposed of, the goodwill associated wilh
the operation disposed of is included in the carmying amount of the operation when
determimng the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these crcumsiances i
measurad based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and tha portion of the
cash-genarating unit retaimed.

2.6 Transactions with non-controlling interasis

Mon-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidianes not atinbutable, directly or
indirectly, o owners of the Company.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions, In such circumstances, the cammying
amounts of the controfling and non-controling interasts are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any differenca between the amount by which the
non-cantrofing interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or receied s
recognised directly in equity and attributed lo owners of the Company.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, 1o variable returns from its involvement with the invesies
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee, Specifically,
the Group conlross an investes if, and only if, the Group has:

. Power cver the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant aclivities of the invesiea);

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involverment with the investes;

. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums,

Tha Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investea if facts and circumstances
indicate thal there are changes 1o one or moda of the threa elements of control.

In thix Comipanys statemant of financial position, investments in subsidianes am accounted
for 81 cost [ess impairment [ossas.

2.8 Imvestments in associates and a joint veniure

An associate is an enfity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equily voting nghts and over which it is in a posiion (o exercise significant
influence. Significant influance is the power to padicipate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, bul is not control or joint contral over those policles.

A joint venlure is a type of joint arangement whereby the parties that have join controd of
the arangement have rights to the net assefs of the jont venfure,  Jaint contral is the
contractually sgreed sharing of contral of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
aboul the relevan] acbvilties require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for its investments in associates and a joint venture using the equity
method from the dale on which it becomes an associale or joinl ventune,

On acquesition of the investment, any excess of tha cost of the investiment over the Group’s
share of the nel far value of the investee’s identifiable assats and liabiliies is accounted for
as goodwill and is included in the camying amount of the invesiment. Any excess af the
Group's shara af the naet fair value of the invesiea's idantifiable assets and abilities aver tha
cost of the investment is Included as income in the determination of the entity’s share of the
associate and joint venlure's profit or loss in the pariod in which the invesiment is acquired,

Under the equity method, investrment in associates and joint venlures is camied in the balance
sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associales or joint ventures. The profit or loss reflects the share of results of the operations
of the associates or joint ventures. Distributions received from associates and joint ventures
reduce the carying amount of the investiment. Where there has been a change recognised
in other comprehensive income by the joint ventures, the Group recognises its share of such
changes in olher comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses resulling from
transactions between the Group and joint ventures are sliminated o the extent of the interest
in the associates and joinl veniures,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Investments in associates and foint ventures {continued)

When the Group's share of losses in an assodate and joint veniure equals or exceeds its
imterest in e associale or joint venture, the Group does nol recognise further losses, unless
It has incurred obligations or made: payments on behalf of the associate and joint venture,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necassary 1o
recognise an addiional impairment lass en the Group's nvestment in associales and joint
ventures, The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objeciive evidence thal the investment in the associate and joinl venture is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associale of ol venture and its carying value and recognises
the amount in prafit or loss.

The financial statements of the associates and joint venlures are prepared as at the same
reporling date as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made o bring he
accounting policies in line with thase of the Group.

2.9 Foreign currency

Tha Company's functional currancy is JPY. These financial statements are presented in
USS, as the directors of the Comipany consider that US$ will facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group, Each entity in the Group determines s own functional curmency
and Items Incleded in the financial stalements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactons recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates pravailing al the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assels and liabililies denominated in foraign currencies are franslaled at the
funclional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on setfiement or transiation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Mon-monatary items thal are measured in lerms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translaled using the exchange rates at the dales of the initial transactions. Non-monelary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rales
at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on transiation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the ilem whose fair
value gain of loss is recognised in olher comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Consaligated fnancial statements

On consolidation, the assets and labilities of foreign operations are ranslated into USS at
the rate of exchange prevailing al the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are
translated at exchange rales prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange
differences arising en transkation for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive
income, On disposal of a foreign operation, the componant of other comprahensive ncome
redating ko that particular forsign oparation is reclassifiod to profit of loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
210  Properly, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipmeani are stated at cost less accumulated depraciation and any
impairment losses.

Cost incudes expenditure thal is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the assel The cost
of self-constructed assels include:

. the cost of materials and direct labour;

. any other costs directly atiributable o brnging the assets to.a working condition for
Lheir intended wuse,

. whaen ihe Group has an obligation to remove the assel or restone the site, an estimate
of the costs of dismantfing and removing the items and restoring the site an which they
are located; and

«  capitalised borrowing costs,

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put info
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which il is ncurred. I situations where the recognition critéria are satisfied, the
expandilure for a major inspection is capilalised in the camying amount of the asset as a
replacemant, Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment ane required 1o be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
uselul lives and depreciates hem accordingly.

Depreciabon is calculated on the straghl-line basis (o wiite off the cost of each Hem of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated wseful life, The principal
annual rates wsed for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Ower the shorter of the leasae terms and 20%
Machinery 10% to 33%
Furmiture and fixhures 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 18% to 50%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have differant useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusied if appropriate, 8l least al each financial year end.

An ibem of property. plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or whan no fulure economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognisad in profit or loss in the year
the assel is derecognised is tha difference between the nel sales proceeds and the carmying
amount of the refevant asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
211 Intangible assets

Intangible assats acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.  The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial acquisition, intangible assets are camied a1 cost less any
accumulated amortsation and any actcumulated impairment losses, Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in profil o loss in the year in which the expenditure i incurred,

Tha useful lives of intangible assels are assessed o be edther finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amontised over the useful economic life
and assessad for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assat may
be impaired. The amonisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumplion of fulure economic benefils
embeodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are trealed as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assels with indefinite useful Fves or not yel avaitable for wvse are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level, Such intangible
assels are nol amortised.  The useful e of an intangible assel with an indefinile e s
reviewed annually to determing whether the indefinite |fe assessment confinues to be
supportable. I not, the change In the useful ife assessment from Indefinite 1o finlie is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognibion of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the assel and are
recognisad in prafit or loss when the assel is derecognised,

Purchased patents and lcenses

The purchased patents and licenses are stated at cost less any impalrment losses and are
amortised on the siraghl-line basis over their astimated useful lives of 10 years.

Software

Tha purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment ksses and is amortised an the
siraight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years,

Intermet domain name

Tha purchased intermet domain name is stated at cost less any impairment losses. It has
indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limil to the period over which the assat is
expected to generate cash flows for the Group.

Cushomer relationships

The custamer relationships acquired through a business combination are recognised intially
al fair value at the acquisition data. Subsequently, this intangibla asset is camied at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of customer retationships is

calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated wseful lives, which are
delermined to be 10 years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
212  Impairment of non-financial asseis

Where an indication of impairmeant edsts, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than inventories, defermed 1lax assets and financial assals), the assel's
recoverable amaount is estimated,

An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined far an individual asset, unless
the asset does nol generate cash inflows that are targely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment lss & recognised anly if tha camying amount of an assel excesds its
recoverable amounl. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market
assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the assel.

An impairment 055 is charged to paofit or [oss in the pencd in which it anses in those expense
categonies consistent with the function of the impaired assel.

An assessment i made ai the end of each reporting period as to whather there i an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exasts, the recoverable amount is estimated. A presvsously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other ihan goodwill s reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimales used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, bul not
o an amount higher than the camying amount that would have been delermened (nel of any
depreciation’amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the assat in prior
yvears. Areversal of such an impairment boss is credited to profit or boss in the persod inwhich
it anses,

{(a) Financial assets
Initial mmgnrmn and measurement

Financial assels are recognised when, and oaly when, the Group becomes a parly 1o
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Al inilial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at Financial asseis at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), ransaction costs that are directly atfributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaclion costs of financial assets camed at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration 1o which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferming promised goods or services (o &
customer, excluding amounts collected on behall of a third party, if the trade
recaivables do not contain a significant financing component at initial recognition,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
213  Fimancial instrumenis
{a)  Financial asseis (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business
madel for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow charactesistics of the assetl.
The three measuremant categories for classification of debt instruments are:

(iy Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Finandial assels that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows whera
those cash flows represent =olely payments of principal and Interest are
measwed a1 amorlised cost, Financial essets at amorlised cost are
subsequently measwred using the effective interest method and are subject 1o
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or boss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired,

(i)  Financial assets designated al fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVOLCI)

Financial assels that are hald for collecion of contracteal cash flows and for
selling the financlal assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and imeresl, are measured at FYOCI. Financial assels
measured at FVOCH are subseguenlly measured al fair value. Any gains or
losses from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income, excepl for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains
and lossas and interest calculated using the effective interest mathod which are
recognised in proft or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equily o profit or loss a5 a
reciassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit o loss

Assets thal do not meet the criteria for amonlised cost or FVOC| are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument thal is subsequently measured at
FYPL and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised In profit or loss in
the pariod in which it arises.

Irvestment in equily nstruments

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not imevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value profit or 10ss are also recognised
as olher incame in profit or loss when the night of payment has been eslaldished, itis
probabie thal the economic benefits associated with the dividend will fiow (o the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured refiably. For investments in equity
instruments which the Group has nol elecied to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income, changes in fair value are recognised in profit or
loss.

-3 -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
213 Financial instrumenis (continued)
{a)  Financisl assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assels

A financial assel is de-recognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows
from the assel has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in s entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
any cumulative gain or loss thal had been recognised in other comprahensive ncome
for debt instruments is recognised in profit or loss,

(b} Financal iabilitias
Imitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party
fo the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group delermines the
classification of its financial iakalitias at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities sre recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabdlities mot at fasr value through profit or loss, directly atinbutable transaction costs.

The Group's financlal llabllities include trade payables, other payables and cerain
accruals, inleresl-bearing bank and other borrowings and kease liabdlities,

Subsequent measuremeant

After inifial recognition, financial liabilfies not at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured al amonised cost using the effective interest melhod. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised, and
through the amortisation process.

Derecogmitfan of financial hatkities

A financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and ihe difference betwean
the respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss,

Offsatling of Fnancial insiruments
Financial assets and financial liabilites are offset and e net amount is reported in he
consalidated statement of financial position if there is & cumently enforceable legal

rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a ned basis,
or to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
214  Impairment of financial asseis

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs®) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value throwgh profit or loss, ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows dus in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects lo recenve, discounted al an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or ather credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Ganeral approach

ECLs are recognised n wo stages. For credil exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since inttial recognition, ECLs ara provided far credit lasses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expectad over the remaining
life of the exposure, imespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

At each reparting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significanty since intial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default cocurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occuming on the financial instrument as at the date of iniial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable infarmation that is available without
urrdue cost or effort, Including historical and forward-looking Information.

The Group considers a financial assel in defaull when confractual payments are 90 days
past due. Howewer, in cerlain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or extemal information indicates that the Group i unlikely 10 recaive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements haeld by the Group. A financial assat is written offl when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows,

Debt investments ai fair value through olher comprehensive income and financial assais al
amortised cost are subject to imparment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs excepl for rade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as defailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instrumemts for which credit risk has net increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial ingstruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial
racognition bul that are nol credit-impaired finandal assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated crodil-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to ifetima ECLs
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
214  Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Sl

For frade recewvables and contract assels that do not contain & significant financing
companent or wihen the Group applies the practical expediant of not adjusting the effectof a
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does nol track changes in encdit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on Wetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on fs histarical credit loss experience,
adjusied for forward-looking factors specific (o the debtors and the economic environment.

215 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inceplion whether a contract is, or conlains, a lease, A
contract is, or contains, a lease il the conlract conveys the right 1o control the use of an
identified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

Tha Group apphas a singla recognition and measurament approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assels. The Group recognises lease Habihes to
make lease paymenis and right-of-usa assets reprasenting the right 1o use fhe underlying
assels.

{a) Right-ol-use assels

Right-of-usa assels are recognised al the commencement date of the lease (thal ks the
date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured at
cosl, bess any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remaasurement of lease liabdities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, infial direct costs incurred, and |ease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
lerms and the eslimated useful lives of lhe assels as lollows:

Buildings 5 yoars
Machinery 3 o 10 years
Office equipments 3105 years

If cwwnership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
aestimated useful life of the asset

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer 1o Note 2,12 impairmeant
of nan-financial assels.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

215 Leases [continued)
Gmup a5 a lessee (contirued)

(b} Lease liabiites

Lease liabilites are recognisad at the commencement date of the lease al the present
value of lease paymends to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index of a rale, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
inchude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably cenain 10 be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for lermination of a lease, f the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In caiculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental
bormowing rate al the lease commencement date because the mterest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.  After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabiliies is increased to reflect the accretion of nterest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carmying amount of lgase liabiities is remeasured il
there is a modification, 8 change in the lease term, a change in lease paymants (e.q.,
a change to fulure lease payments resulting from a change In an Index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an oplion 1o pwchase the underdying asset.

{c) Short-tarm leases and leases of low-valug assets

The Group applies the shorl-term lease recognition examgption to its short-lerm leasaes
of machinery and equipmeant (that is those leasas that have a lease term of 12 months
ar less from the commencemant date and do not contain a purchase option), When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-leasa basis.

Lease payments on shor-lerm leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised
a5 an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

2.16  Inventories
Inventories are siated al the lower of cost and nel realisable value, Cost is determined on
first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials. direct labour and an appropriate proporiion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs 0 be incurred o
completion and disposal,

Where necessary, sllowance is provided for damaged, obsolate and slow moving items 1o
adjust the carrying value of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2147  Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and shord term
highiy liquad investments thal are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, ane subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have & short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank ovendrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management

218  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it ks probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required ta setila the obligation and the amount of the obligation can ba estimated raliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted (o reflect the current
best estimate. If il is no longer probable that an outfow of economic resources will be
required to sattle the obligation, the provision s reversed. If the effect of the time value of
money is matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the nisks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the
pravision due o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

219  Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis are capltalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset f they are directly
attributable o the acquisiton, construction or produdtion of that assel Capitalisation of
bormowing costs commences when ihe aclivities lo prepare the asset for ils intenced use or
sala are in progress and the expenditures and barmowing costs ans incurmed. Bomowing costs
are capitalised untll the assels are substantially completed for thelr intended use or sale. All
ather borrowing costs are axpensad in the period they ocour, Bormowing costs consist of
interes{ and other costs that an entity incurs i connection with the borrowing of funds.

2,20 Government granis

Government grants are recognised at their far value where there is reascnable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will b complied with, The grant is
recognised in profit or loss on a8 systematic basis over the perods in which the entity
recognises as expenses the relaled costs for which the grants are intended to compeansate,
Grants related to income may be presented as a credit in profit or loss, either separataly or
under heading such as "Other income”. Allernatively. they ase deducted in reporting the
related expanses,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
221  Revenue
Revanue from contract with cusfomers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the Group satishes a
performance obligation by Wransfering a promised good or semnvice 1o customer, which s
when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance obligation may be
salisfied at a peint in time or over ime. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount
gllocated to the safisfied performance obligation,

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of consideration
is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for Wransfernng the goods or
sanices to the customer. The vanable consideraton is estimaled at contract inception and
constrained wntil it i highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not cocur when the associated wncerdainty with the
vanable consideration s subseqguently resohved.

(a) Management services - Management fee income

Ravenue from the prowvision of management Senices is recognised over the schedulad
period on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefils provided by the Group.

()  Management services - Advisory fee Income

Rewvenue lrom the provision of advisory services is recognised either (i) point In time
when control of the promised service is fransferred fo the customer, generally on
dedivery of the advisory reparts; of (i) over tme, using Input method, based on direct
meaasurameants of the valua of the servicas transfamed to tha customer to date, relatve
to the remaining services promised under the contract, depending if the contraet has
redavant lerms that entitle the Group with enforceable right to payment for performance
completed o date

(c) Food and beverage income
Revenue from restaurant cperation is recognised at the point in tme when control of
the goods and services are lransferred to the custamar, baing al the point the customear
purchases the goods or when the food caterning services are completed at the
restaurants,

Revanue from sales of foed products is recognised a1 the point in ime when controd of
the assel is fransferred to the customer, generally upon delivery of the food products.

(d) Personal care Incomea
Rewvenue from the sale of personal care products is recognised at a paint in time when

control of the assel is Wransferred to the cuslomer, generally upon delivery of the
personal cara products.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
221  Revenue (continued)
{e) Petcare sarvice income

Revenue from pet care senvice is recognised at the point in time when the promised
Service is transferred to the customer.

{f)  Educalion service income

Revenus from education service is recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance cbligations, as the customer
simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

() Oiher strategic investment sales — Commission on sales of columbariums

Revenue from commisson on sales of columbarniums is determined as a percentage
based on the value of ransaction amount. Revenue related io such commissions s
recognised upon a lime when the Group salisfies its performance obligations by
rendering services.

(h)  Other strategic investmeant sales - Internet media incomea

Revanue from intermet media income is recognised at the point in time when the
promised service Is transterred to the customer.

(I}  Oiher income = inlerest Income

Interest income i recognised on an acerual basis using the efective interest method
by applying the rale thal exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
axpacted life of the financial instrument or @ shorer pericd, when appropriate, to the
net camying amount of the financial assat,

2,22 Confract assefs and liabilities
Contrac! azsels

A conlract assel is the right lo consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Group performs by transferming goods or services (o 8 customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract assal is recognised for
the eamed consideration that is conditional. Coniract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Coniract habitifies
A contract liabdity is recognised when a payment is received or a paymentl 5 due (whichever
i garber) from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contracl

lighilkties. are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
fransfers control of the relaled goods or services to the customer ).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23  Employee benefits

{a) Defined contribution plans
Penslon scheme - Singapoe

Payments made to siate-managed retirement banefit schemes, such as the Singapore
Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as paymenis to defined contribubion plans and
are charged as an expenses as they fall due.

Pension scheme = Japan

Employeeas in Japan are required 1o be coverad under the National Pension System in
accordance with the Japan law. Contributions to the pension funds by the Group are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries, The retirement benefit plan
cosl charged to profil or loss represents contributions payable by the Group 1o the
pension funds,

Pension scheme — Hong Koang

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employeses. Confributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees' baskc sataries and are charged o profit or loss as they become payabie
in accordance wilh he rules of the MPF Scheme, The assels of the MPF Scheme are
hedd separately from those of the Group in an independenily adminisiered fund. The
Group's amployer confributions vest fully with the employeas when contribufed into the
MPF Scheme.

(b Defned banefit plans

The Group provides provisions for employee service entitlements in order 1o meet the
minimum benafits required 1o be paid to qualified employess, as required under the
Indonesia Labour Law No.13/2003. The said prowisions, which are unfunded, are
astimated using the propected unil cradit actuanal valuation method.

Remeasuraments arising from the defined benefit liability comprising of actuarial gains
amrd losses, are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with & cormesponding debit or crodil to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are nol
reclassified o profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service oosts ara recognised in profil or loss at the earkier af:
. the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

L] the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs,

- 39 -

212/302



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)
oOoOooodn

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

223 Employee benefits (continued)
(b} Defined benafit plans jeontinued)

Mel imenest is calculaled by applying the discount rate 1o the nel defined benefit
liability, The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
liabilibes under “Administrative expensas® in the consolidaled statement of profit or
loss:

- service costs comprising current sarvice costs, past-service costs, gans and
lpsses on cunailments and non-routine settlements; and
. nel interest expense of iNCome.

2.24  Share-based payments

The Company operales a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards o eligible paricipanls who contribule 1o the success of the Group's operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby emplovees render services as consideration for equity
instruments ("equity-settied transactions®),

The cost of equity-settled ransactions with employees is measured by reference o the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an extemal valuear
using a binomial model, further detalls of which are given in Note 32 to the financial
slatermenis,

The cost of equity-satiied ransactions is recognised in employee benefil expense, together
with a comesponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance andfor
service condilions are fulfiled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extant 1o
which the vesting percd has axpired and the Group's best estmate of the number of equity
instrumenis that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit (o the statement of profit or loss for
a period rapresents the movement in the cumutative expensa racognised as al tha bagnning
and end of that period,

Service and non-markel performance conditions are nol laken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the kebhood of the conditions baing met
is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance condiions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated sarvice requiremant,
are consdered to be non-vesting conditions. Mon-vesting conditons are reflected in the fair
value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless thers are also
sapace andior perormance condibons.

For awards thal do not ultimately vest because non-markel performance andion service
conditions have not been mel, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
o nan-vesting condition, the Fansacthons are treated as vesting imespective of whethaer the
market or non-vesting condition s satisfied, provided that all other performance and'or
service conditions are satisficd.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.24  Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense s
recognised as il the terms had nol been modified, if the original terms of the award are met.
In addition, an expense & recognised for any modification thal increases the tolal fair valus
of Ihe share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial 1o the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settied award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expanse nolt yel recognisad for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the cantrol of either the Group
of the employes are not met. Howeaver, If a new award i3 substituted for the cancelled award,
and s designated as a replacement award an the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards ase ireated as If they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflecied as additional share dilution in the
compulation of eamings per share.

2258 Taxos

Income tax comprises current and deferred lax. Income lax relating 1o items recognised
oulside profit or loss is recognised outside proft or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

{a) Cuwrent income fax

Current tax assets and liabililies are measured al the amount expected to be recovered
fram or paid io the taxation authorities, based on lax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, laking info
consideration interprefations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

(b) Defered tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liakility methed, on all temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period bebwean the tax bases of assets and liabiibes and their

camying amounts for financial repoerting purposas.
Deferred tax kabilities are recognised for all laxable temporary differencas, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the inifial recognition of goodwill or an
asset of lability in a transaction that i not a business combination and, at the
tirne of the transaction, affects neither the accourting prafit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

- in respect of laxable temporary differences associated with investments in

subsidiaries, associales and joinl ventures, when the iming of the reversal of

the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the lemporary
differences will not reverse in the foresesable future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
225 Tawes [continued)
(b} Defered tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. and the
camyforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assels
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary diferences, and the carmyforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

= when the delerred tax assef relating 1o the deductible temporary differances
anses from the initial recognifion of an assel or Rability in a transaction that is
not & business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
fhe accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in raspect of deductible femporary differences associated with investments in
subsidianes, assodales and joint venlures, deferred lax assels are only
recognised to fhe extent that i is probabla that the temporary differences will
reversa in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the termparary differences can be ulilised.

The carrying amount of deferred ftax assats is reviewed at the end of each reporting
pericd and reduced lo the exiant that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred lax asset to be utihsed.
Unrecognised deferred tax sssels are reassessed at the end of each reporting penod
and are recognised 1o the exient that it has become probable that sufficien taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the defermed tax, asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liakalities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply 1o the perod when the assel i realised of the abilily is setled, bazed on lax
rates (and tax laws) that hava been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reponing period.

Deferred tax assets and defered (ax [iabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a
legally enforceable right 1o set off cument tax assets and current tax liabilites and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliies relate 1o income taxes lavied by the
same taxation authorty on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend aither to setthe cument lax liabdiies and assats on a nel basis, or 1o realise
the assets and selile the liabilties simultaneously, in each future perod in which
significant amaounts of deferred tax Eabilfies or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
225 Tawes [continued)
(c) Sales fax

Expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

- When lhe sales lax incurmed on a puwrchasa of assets or servicas is naol
recoverable from the tlaxation authority, in which case the sales lax = recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or 25 part of the expense item as
applicable; and

. Whan recaivables and payables that ara stated with the amount of sales fax
inchuded,

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, o payabie 1o, the taxation authonties
are included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

226  Share capital and share issuance expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capial in equity.

Incremental costs directly aitnbulable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted

against share capital.

22T  Contingencies

A contingent liabiity is:

{a) & possible obligation ihatl arises from pasl evenls and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure
events nat whodly within the contrel of the Group; oF

(b) & present obligation thal anses from past events bul is not recognisad becausa:

(i}  Itisnot probable that an outfliow of resources embodying economic banafits will
be required to setile ihe obligation; or
(i}  The amount of tha obligation cannot be measuned with sufficiant raliability
A contingent assel is a possible assel thal arises from past evenls and whose existence will

be confirmed only by the occumence or non-occurmence of one or more uncertain fulure
events not wholly within the control of the: Group.

Contingent liabilities and assels are nol recegnised on the stateman of fnancial posiion of
the Group, except for contingent lighilities assumed in 8 business combenation that are
present obligations and which the fair values can be reliably determined.

L
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

228  Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
o transactions with any of the Group's other components. Al operating segments’ opsrating
resulls are reviewed regulary by the Group's CEQ (the chief operating de<ision maker) and
senior management to make dedisions abowt resources to be allocated to the segment and
1o assess its performance, and for which diserete financial information is available.

Segment resulls that are reported to the Growp's CEO and senior management include ilems
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company's
headquarters), head office expenses, and tax assets and liabiities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property,
plan and equipment, and intangible assels other than goodwill.

a, SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

Thea preparation of tha Group’s consolidated financial statemants requires managemant o
make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expanses, ascets and labidities, and their accompanying disciosures, and the dsclosure of
contingent liabliities. WUncenalnty about these assumplions and estimates could result In
oulcomes that could require a material adjustment to the camying amounis of the assals or
liabikl:es affected in the fulure.

31 Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
fallowing judgement, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Deferred tax assels

Defered tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses (o the extent that it is probatrle that
laxable profit will be available against which the losses can ba ulilised. Significant
management judgemsant is required to determine the amount of deferred 1ax assets thal can
be recognised, based upon the lkely timing and level of fulure taxable profits togather with
future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecegnised tax losses at 31 December 2021
was USS3, 706,851 (2020: US$3,087,189). Further details are contained in Mote 28 1o tha
financial statements.
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a4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The kay assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting perod, thal have a sigrificant risk of causing a materal adjustment
o the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below,

impairment of goodwill

Tha Group determines whether goodwill is impaired ai least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in usa of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
iz allocated.  Estimating the value in use requires the Group 1o make an estimate of the
axpected fulure cash fiows from the cash-genarating wnits and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order 10 calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carmying amount
of goodwill 8t 31 December 2021 was US$13,888,920 (2020, US311,758,830), Further
details are given in Note 13 to the financial statemeants.

Revenue recagnifion rom advisary senice

Revenue from advisory service s recognised based on the stage of completion of the
contract, using input method which requires estimations made by management.
Management estimales the expected total costs o complete the relevan performance
obligations based on the budgeats prepared for the confracts. Because of the nature of the
aclivities, management reviews and revises the estimates of such expected cosis in the
budget prepared Tor each conlract as the contracl progresses. Any revisions 1o estimates of
lhe expected costs would alfect conlract revenue recognition.

Imparment of propery, plant and eguipment and rght-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each reporting pariod, An impairment axists
when the camying vaiue of an asset or a cash-generating unit ("CGU") exceeds is
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Management has used the valug-in-use method 1o assess recoverable amounts of
the CGU, When value in use calculations ame undertaken, management musl estimale he
expected fulure cash flows from the asset or cash-generaling unit and choose a suilable
discount rate in order to calculate the present valua of those cash flows. The carrying amaunt
of property, plant and equspment and right-of-use assels at 31 December 2021 was
US$926,494 (2020: US$1,409,912) and USE4,019,370 (2020: USS4,764,215) respoctivaly.
Further details are given In Nole 12 o the financial statements.,
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncerfainty {continued)
Prowision for expected credit losses an irade receivablas

The Group uses @ provision matriz to calculate ECLs for trada and other receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of vanous customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

Thea provision malrix is initially based on the Group's histonical observed default rates. The
Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the histodical credit loss experience with forwvard-
locking information.  For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expecled lo detenorate ower the next year which can lead 10 an increased
numbear of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical chbserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed,

The assessmeni of the comelation among historical cbserved default rales. forecast
economic conditions and ECGLS is a signficant estmate. The amount of ECLS is sensitive 1o
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions, The Group's historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer's actual default in the future, The information abowt the ECLs on the Group's trade
recelvables is desclosed in Mote 20 1o the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised info business unilts based an thair
products and services and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) managemen! service segment which engaged in the provision of management and
advisory services;

{b) perscnal care segment which engaged in the developmeni, production and sales of
material and organic products;

(c) pel care segment which engaged in the operation of veterinary hospital and pel care
business; and

{d) strategic investment segment principally comprises of operations in food and beverage
industry, education services, columbanum services, trading of fertility check-up kit and
pravision of related internat marketing senvicea.

Management monitors the resulls of the Group's operating segmeants separately for the
purpose of making decisions aboul rescurce allocation and performance assessment.
Segment parformance is evaluated based on reportable segment profitioss, which is a
measure of adjusted profitioss before fax. The adjusted opersting profit is measured
consistently with the Group's operating profit excepd that finance income, finance cosis, share
of profits and losses of associates and corporate and unaliocated expenses are exciuded
from such measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

Segment assets exclude investments in associates and corparate and unallocated assels as
ihese assels ane managed on a group hasis.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate and unallocated liabilities as these liabiliies are
managed on 8 group basis,

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with referencea to the selling prices wsed for
sales made to third parties al the then prevailing markel prices,

2021
Management Personal Strategic
service care Petcare  investments Total
uss Lss Uss uss uss
Segment revenue
Revenue from extemal
CUSIOMErs ITBAIETE 1B T43B41 6135345 10380924 TV3,113.389
Intersegrent revenue 1,673,220 61,130 - 438324 2172682
39,516,907 18804971 6,135,045 10828248 75285071
Reconciation:
Efimination of intersagrment
revenue [2.172.6682)
Total revenue 73,113,389

Sl

220/302



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)
oOoOooodn

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

2021 (continued)
Management  Personal Strategic
sarvice care Potcare  investmenis Total
UEs Uss uss uss uss

Segment results before

non-cash ilems 13,512,377 1.213.870 628,931 1,889,282 17,254 460

AaiTl

Impaimment af trade

recaivables {3,803) - {1,460} * 15,263)
Impaimment of property,

plani and equipment - - - (=1.882) (51.882)
Impairment of right-of-use

assels - - - [236,163)  (236.163)
Write-olf of invenories - [43,878) - - (43.878)
Write-off of property. plant

ard equipment (5,234) = = {r12) {5.846)
Write-off of ather intangibla

assels - - - (3,101) 3101
Deprecation (2.099,912) (66,219) (368.034) (1.7B3.048) (4,317.811)
Amoriisation (186,512 (26,032) (51 857} (16,7400  {281,111)
Loss on disposal of

property, plant and

equpment {1,078) = = 418) {1,482
Fair value loss on an equity

invesimaent at fair valua

threugh profit or koss - - - (106,554) {106.554)
Gasn on lermination of

leasas 13,037 ag - 50,482 ¥2.500
Loss on disposal of

subsadianies and

businesses - - - (18,224} 118,224)
Defined banafil expanses (16,494) - - - (16, 408)
Share option expenses {123,219} - - - {123.219)
Segment results 11088160 107773 206,980 (258,044) 12115817
Corporate and unaliocated

CHPENSLs (4,249 466)
Crperating profit T.886,351
Finance income 2,640
Finance costs (6T TB4)
Share of profils and losses

of associates 51,0684
Profit befiors tax 7.5524T1

- 4B -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

2021 (continued)
Management  Personal Strategic
service carg Petcare  investments Taotal
Uss uss uss Uss uss

Segment assels 28218321 563090 6500914 15566904 55006227
Feconciliation;
Elimination of intersegrment

assels (232,647
Investments in associales 30557
Corporate and unallocated

agsels 27 B52 485
Total assets B3, 848632
Segment Habiktes 15,052,006 48568868 4070862 5515852 31,305.486
Reconciliation:
Eliminatan of intersegrment

atities (233.64T)
Corporate and unaliocated

hadies 1,970,429
Total liabilities 33,042 268
Other segment

information
Capital expendture 60,52 3,253 T2 586,30 T11.306

5 Capital expendibure consisis of additions of property, plant ard equipment and other intangible
assels induding assats from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

. 49 .
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

2020
Management Personal Strategic
service care Petcare  investments Total
uss uss uss Lss Uss
Segment revenue
Revenua from axtemal
CUSIOMEs 32436348 15546022 3,830 344 G.688.781 58912373
InteErsegrmenl revenue 1,618,339 47 G4 1,187 398333  2,0685523

054685 159040868  3.B40531 7.088.084 GO9TTE0G

R " )
Elminaton of intersegraen

nevenue [2.065.523)
Total revenue 58,912,373
Segment results before

non-cash ilems 11,828 266 625,005 303678 1627230 14,474,160
{¥orr-cash fems
Reversal of impairment of

trade receivables 40,202 = = = 40,202
Impairment of property,

plant and equipmen - - - [T6,084) (76.064)
Impaiment of ather

inlangible assels - - - (18,365) (16,360)
Irrpairment af right-of-use

assels - - - (6:3,538) (63.538)
Write-alf of invenories - (59 486) - - (59 486)
Diepreciation (2366, 437) (60,213} (241183} (2638,773) ([5,306.606)
Amartisabion (202 113) (52,5100 {3,362) (26,832) (284,817
(Lessigain on disposal of

property, plant and

equpment {7,023) = T49 2,483 {4,111
Loss on disposal of other

inMangible assels (16,943) [14,885) = - (31.628)
Fair value gain on an equity

imvestment at fair value

through profit or koss - - - B2T 876 B2T G976
Gain on lermination of

Ieases 27.097 33 1571 24236 31,142
Gain on bargan purchase - - - 1,600,312 1,500,312
Gasn on disposal of

subsidianies and

businesses 4 - 85133 381,400 486,537
Dafined benefl expenses (92,375) = - - (92.379)
Segment results (cf) 9,210,874 437,949 236,588 1,608,931 11,495,140

-5 -

223/302



YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)
oOoOooodn

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

2020 (continued)

Segment results (b
Corporate and unallocated
expanses

Operating profit
Finance income:

Finance costs
Share of profits and losses
of associates

Profil before tax

Segment assels

Efiminaton of intersegment
BESES

Invesbments i assocales

Corporate and unalioca ted
assels

Total assets

Segment labifities

Heconcibation.

Elimination of intersegrment
Enbdities

Corporate and unaliocated
lLavifias

Total liabilities

Other segment
infermaticn
Capital expendiurs ®

Management

service
uss

8,210,674

28,060,508

17.428 887

267 644

Personal Strategic
carg Petcare  investments Taotal
uss uss Uss uss

437,849 236,585 1,608,931 11495140

[3,278,103)

8,217,037
ZAd3
(516,866)

(219.4T6)

7483138
4314388 8141630 15300071 51,825575

{280,857}
ZEI T

2,684 728

54,452 581

4170,134 4 065 811 4 160,403 30,734 215
(280,B5T)

25T 627

33,310,985

20,029 o074 1.350874 1846621

" Capital expendilure consists of additions of propedy, plani and equepment and olher intangsble
assels including assats from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

S8 e
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

4, COPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)
Geographical information

{a) Rewvenue from external customers

2021 2020

uUss uss
Japam 46,607,706 37220689
Grealer China 10,289,777 9485139
Southeas! Asia 12,479,083 9.531.422
Morth America 1,237.501 1.046,873
Europe 413,138 282,830
Middie east 1,852.475 1,320,768
India 173,888 15,552

73,113,380 5B012,373

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the legal entities which
earmed the ravenus,

(b)  Mof-currant assets

2021 2020

Uss uss
Japan 9,020,518 6272121
Greater China 1,224,548 3,132,620
Southeas! Asia 10,293,903 10,338,766
Middbe st - 18,443

20,536,963 19,761,960

The non-curent assat informabion above is based on the localions of assels and
excludes financial assets and deferred tax assels.

Infarmation about a major customer

Curing the year 31 December 2021, no revenue from ransactions with a single external
customer amounted 1o 10% or more of the Group's tolal revenue (2020: Nil).

- 52 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

&, REVEMNUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
nue from contracts with Omers
{a) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2021

Management  Personal Strategic
senvice care Pet care  investments Tatal
uss uss uss uss uss
Segments
Types of goods or
SCTHCCS
Management servicas 22 £4§ 137 - - — 22,548,137
Aghisory services 15,247 542 - - - 15,207 542
Personal care = 18,743,841 - = 18,743,841
Pel care = -  B135045 - B.135945
Food and beverage —
restawrant operation - - - 6623213 6623213
Food and beverage —
salas of food producis - - - 2744 270 2744 279
Others = - - 1022432 1032432
aAT.B43 679 18743841 6135945 10380924 73,113,380
Geographical
markots
Japan 19670578 18626,6828 6935945 2225355 46,667,706
Creater China 6,006 487 - - 4 283 280 10,280,777
Southwas! Asia B.480 781 17,013 - 3581289 12,479,093
Maorth Amedica 1,237 501 - - - 1,237,501
Europa 413,138 - - - 413138
Middle east 1,852 475 - - - 1,852475
India 173,699 - - = 173,609
A7.B43 679 18,743,841  B,135845 10380924 73,113,389
Timing of revenue
recognition
Borvices transfermed
over time 37,843 679 - - = 37.R4367D
Goods and servioes
transferred ol a paint
in tima = 18743841 6135945 10380924 35 260,710

A7 B43 679 18743841 B135845 10.3BBO24 73113380

- 53 -

226/302



EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)
oOoOooodn

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

5. REVEMUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
{a) Disaggregated revenua information (continued)

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2020

Management  Personal Strategic
semvice care Pet care investments Total
uss uss uss uss uss
Segments
Types of goods or
services
Management senvices  1g 811,206 - - ~ 18,811,206
Advisory senvices 13,625 140 - - - 13,625,140
Personal care - 15946 822 - — 15,846,922
Pel care = - 3838344 - 3,839,344
Food and beverage —
restawrant operation - - - 5181284 5191284
Food and beverage —
salas of food producis - - - 1284 446 1284 446
Education - = - 15,204 15,204
Oihers - - - 108,827 108,827
32436346 15946922 2839344 6689761 58912373
Geographical
maorkats
Japan 16,064 B0A 15852 406 3,830 344 584,132 37220689
Greater China 6,297 208 4,672 - 3183259 9485139
Southeast Asia 6,499 207 89,845 - 2942370 9531422
Morth America 1.046 873 - = = 1,046,873
Europe 262 530 = = - 282930
Middla east 1,329 768 - - - 1329768
India 15,552 - - - 15,552
32,436 346 15946 9322 3,538 344 B &6EA FE1 58812373
Timing of revenue
recognition
Services transferrad
aver fime 26,164 BOS - - 15204 26,200,000
GOoOds and Services
transferred al a paoint
in time B261 541 15846022 3830344 6874 557 32712384

A2.430,346 15840922 2528344 G.EBRTE1 58,912,373
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

5. REVEMUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with cusiomers (continued)

{a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that was included in contract liabities at the beginning of the reporting period
and recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous periads:

2021 2020
uss Uss
Revenue recognised thal was incleded n confract
fighilities at the beginaing of tha reporting perod:
Advisory fee income 7.563 385,871

Performance obligaticns

Information about the Group's performance obligations s summansed below:
Managemen! senices- Managemen! fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied over ime as services are rendered and short-
term advances are normally required before rendering the serices. Management
service contracts are for periods of one year or less, or are billed based on the time
incurmed.

Managermend senices- Advisory fee noome

The performance obigation is satisfied eiher (i) upon delivery of the advisory reports
and payment is generally dua within 30 days from delivery, or (I} overtime as services
arg rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing.
Food and beverage — resfaurant oparation

The performance obligation is satisfed when the calering services have been provided
to customers, The Group's trading terms with its cusiomers are mainly on cash and
credil card setement. The credit penod i generally l2ss than ong month.

Food and baverage — sales of food products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon defivery of the lfood products and payment
is generally due within 30 days from delivery.

Sale of personal care products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivary of the personal care products
and payment is generally due within 30 days from delivery.

- 55 .
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

5. REVEMUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with cusiomers (continued)
(b}  Performance obligations (confinued)
Pet care senvice income

The performance obligation is generally satisfied at a point in tima upon complation of
the services and payment is generally due when the services have been rendered.

Educalion senice incams

The performance obkgation is generally salisfied over lime as services are provided
and payment s genesally due when the sarvices have been renderad,

Other strategic invesimen! sales- interme! media fee ncame

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of services and payment is
generally due when the services have been rendered.

Othar stralegic invesiment sales- Comnnssion on sales of columbanms

The performance obligation i satisfied when the columbarium senvices have been
provided to customers.

Transaction price affocaled o remaining perforrmance obligation

The aggregate amount of transaction prica allocated fo the unsatisfed (or parially
unsatisfied) performance obligations a5 at 31 December 2021 i3 US$941,530 (2020:
USS688,571), This amount has nat included the following:

- Performance obigations for which the Group has applied practical expedsent not
to disclose information about its remaining obligations i
- The performance oblgation is part of a8 contract that has an onginal
expecied duration for one year of lass, of

= The Group recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Group has a
right 1o invoice cuslomers in amounts thal comespond direclly with the
value fo the customer of the Group's performance compiated to date.

The Group expects io recognise USS1,618672 (2020: USS1.488,737) as revenue

redating to the transaction price allocated to the unsatished (or partially unsatisfied)
performance obligations as at 31 December 2021 in the financial year 2022
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

. REVEMNUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Other income and gains

2021 2020
uss uss
Fair value (loss)gain on an equity investiment al fair value
through profit on loss (106,554) 827 978
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 33) - 1,590,312
{Loes)igain on disposal of a subsidiaries and buginesses
{Note 34) {18,224 466,537
Govemment grants # 270,606 218,023
Cthers 4,760 -

150,588 3,102,848

& The amount mainy included subsidies granted by certain governments from jurisdictions
where the Group operales, to provide financial suppori during the Cowid-19 pandemic,
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these granis.

- 57 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

E. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediing]:

2021 2020
uss uss
Cost of inventories scid B.856,175 6,627,142
Cost of services provided 6,193503 3.011.229
Emgployes benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration (Mote 9)).*
Wages and salanies 22,840,488 21,283,497
Pension scheme contribulions 2416479 1,685.575
Defined benefil expense (Mole 20) 16,428 92,379
Equity-settied share option expenses (Note 32) 123,218 =

25306 684 23 061.4%1

Depreciation:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 686,250 726,385

Right-ol-use assets (Nole 12) 3,631,652 4,580.241

4. 317911 5,306,808

Auditor's remuneration 1.451 540 1,027.858
Expenses relating to shor-lerm leases 371,682 263,090
Foreign exchange differences, net 161,374 133,516
Loss on disposal property, plant and aquipmnt 1,482 4111
Gain on termination of leases (72,500) (31,142)
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets - 31.828
Impalmment of property. plam and equipmeant (Note 12) 51,882 75,064
Impairment of other intangible assats (Mate 14) s 16,359
Impairment of right-of-use assats (Nofe 12) 236,163 63,538
Wite-off of inventones 43878 50,486
Write-alf of property, plant and equipment 5045 -
Wite-off of ather infangible assals (Mate 14) 310 -
Amariisation of other intangible assets (Mote 14} 281,111 284, 817
Provision fori{reversal of) impairment of trade receivables

{Mole 20) 5,283 (40,202)
Gain on bargain purchase (Nole 33) - 11.580.312)
Lossdigain) on dispesal of subsidianes and businesses

(Mote 34) 18224 {456,537)
Fair value loss/(gain) on an eguily invesimenl at falr value

through profit or loss 108,554 (827 876)

* Employes benefl expenses included in "Cost of sales™ and "Administrative expenses” in the
consobdated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted o
LISES 423 065 (2020 $6. 367 317) and USS10.973,580 (A US516.694 134), respactivaly
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

7. FINANCE INCOME

2024 2020
uss uss
Bank interest income 2,840 2,443
B. FINAMCE COSTS
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
2021 2020
uss Uss
Interest on interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 258,661 363,026
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 27} 104,000 147,840
Oithers 5.033 -
367,784 516,566
9. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION
2021 2020
uss uss
Faes 107,682 51,068
Other emoluments:
Salaries, alowances and benefits in kind T26.526 625,140
Equity-settied share oplion expenses 565 =
834,783 708,208
1o, INCOME TAX
2021 2020
Uss USs
Statemen! of profil o loss and olfver cormpreliensve
Current income lax
- Charge for the year 2541827 1,749,865
« Qerprovision in préor years = (14,138)
Deferred tax
- Cwigination and reversal of temporary differences 18,885 (TEE,5456)
Total tax charge for tha year 2,560,812 868,981
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

10, INCOME TAX (comtinued)
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Arecanciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the

countries in which the Group and the magority of its subsidianes are domiciled to the lax
expanse at the effective tax rate is 55 follows:

2021 2020
uss uss
Profit before tax 7552471 7483138
Tax al the statutory lax rale 1,283,020 1.234.718
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 1,237 401 591,393
Tax effects of:
Income not subject to tax (73.456) (583,273)
Expenses nol deductible for lax 220,755 36,863
OwErprovision in prior years - (14,138)
Praofits and losses aliribulable io associates {B,681) 36,214
Tax lpsses ulilised from previous periods (71.918) {225,551)
Deferred tax recognised in respect of previous perods (203, 7409 (360,862)
Tax losses not recognised 155421 221,810
Effect of withholding tax 21,783 86,210
Others (BES) (48,223)
Tax expense at the Group's effective rale 25680812 968,981

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregabing separate reconcliabons for each
national jurisdiction.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, there is no share of tax attributable 1o

associales included in “Share of profits and losses of associales” in the consolidated
statement of profil or less and other comprehensive income (2020: Nil).
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Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

oOoOooodn

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amounis is based on the profit atiribuiable to
owners of ihe parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shanes in issue duning
the year, an the assumplian that the Rearganisation Exercise as further detailed in Mote 30

had completed on 1 January 2020,

Eamings
Prafit attributabla to owners of the parent, used in the basic
and diluled earnings per share calculation

Mumber of sharas

Waighted average number of crdinary shares for the
purposes of basic eamings per share

Eamings per share (in cenls)
- Basic and diluted

Group
2021 2020
uss uss

4,851,236 6,553,738

Mumber of shares

2021 2020

15,944,582 15881275

uss uss

31.05 41.27

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2021, no adjustment was made (o the basic eamings per
share amount as the potential dilutive effect of the share oplion are not included in the
calculation of diluted eamings per share unfil certain conditions detailed in Mote 32 to the

financial statements are met.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares

in issug,

S8 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment of asseis

Property, plant and equipmant and right-of-use assets are tested for impainment when there
are indicators that the camying amounts may not be recoverabie. In particular, management
assesses impairment of property, plent and equipment and right-of-use assels of the Food
and Beverage ("F&B") cash-generating units (“CGU) which continued to underperform for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021,

Tha recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assels
redating to F&B seclor with indicators of impairment ware detarmined based on their value in
use ("VIUT) over the remaining lease term, The pre-tax discount rate usad was 9% (2020:
12%).

An impairment koss of US$51,882 (2020: US3T6,064) for propedty, plant and eguipment and
USS5236,163 (2020; US$63,538) for right-of-use assets was recognised in the profit or loss.,

13. GOODWILL

Group
2021 2020
Uss uss
Al January:
Cost 11,758,830 10,363,086
Accurmulated imgairment - (58.013)
Met camying amount 11,758,830 10,305,073
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated impairment 11,758,630 10,305,073
Revarsal of impasrment - 58,013
Disposal of a subsidiary - (58,013)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses (Mote 33) 2 555,585 1,565,038
Exchange realignmernt (627.475) (112.231)
et camying amount at 31 December 13,686,020 11,758,830

Al 31 Decamber
Cost 13,686,920 11,758,830
Accumulated imgaimrmeant - -

et carrying amount 13,686.920 11,758,830
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

13, GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment ] ahwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the following cash-
generating unils ("GGU") for impairment testing:

* Food and beverage — sales of food products;
. Pet care service,

- Managament service; and

. Columbarium service

The camying amount of goodwill allocaled to each of the cash-generating units is as follows:

Food and Petcare Management Columbarium
beverage service Service service Total
use uss uss uss uss

Al 31 December 2021 111,084 3,404,009 8,551,504 1,620,143 13,686,820

Al 31 Decamber 2020 113,022 3,007,598 £,638,210 - 11,758,830

i Food and beverage — sales of food products cash-generaling unit

The recoverable amount of the food and baverage CGU has bean determined based
on a value in use calculaticn using cash flow projeclions based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period (2020: five-year period) approved by senicr management.
The pre-1ax discount rate applied 1o the cash Mow projectons is 12% (2020: 12%).

i) Pet care service cash-generaling umif

The recoverable amount of the pet care service cash-generating unit has been
determined basad on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial bedgets covenng a five-year pericd {2020: five-year period) approved by
sanior management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
12% 10 15% {2020: 15%). Anticipated revenue growth rates over the five-year period
for the CGU ranges from 0% (o 5% (2020; 0% to 5%). The terminal growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash fiows of the unit bevond the five-year penod is 1% (2020. 0%).

i)  Management service cash-gencrating unit

The recoverable amount of the management service cash-generaling unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow prajections based on
financial budgets covenng a three o five-year perod (2020; five-year pariod) approved
by senicr management. The pre-1ax discount rate applied to the cash Aow projectons
Is ranging from 15% to 18% (2020: 15% to 18%). Anticipated revenue growth rales
aver the five-year pariod for the CGU ranges from 0% (o 12% (2020: 1% to 10%). The
terminal growth rate used 1o extrapolale the cash flows of the unil beyond the five-year
period is ranging from 1% 1o 2% (2020: 0% ta 3%).
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

13, GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment } dwill {continued
) Columbanium senvice cash-ganerafing unit

The recoverable amount of the strategic service cash-generating unit has been
delermined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgels covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
pre-tax discount rale applied to the cash flow projectons is 12%. Anticipated revenue
growih rates owver the five-yvear pericd for the CGU ranges from 0% o 28%. The
terminal growth rate used o extrapelale the cash flows of the unit beyond the five-year
period is 1%,

Assumphians wene used in the value in use calculations of the food and beverage, pet care
service, management service and columbarium service cash-generating units for 31
December 2021, The following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections (o underlake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budget gross margin = The basis used 1o determing the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvemants, and expected market
development.

Growth rates — The forecasted growth rates are based on historical achieved growth rates,
publkshed Industry research and growih rales of the indusinies relevant 1o the CGUs.

Discount rales = The discount raies used are belore lax and rellect specific risks refating o
the relevant units.

As the camying amounts of the CGUs were determined to be lower than ids recovarable

amount, no impairment loss was recognised. Should the assumplions not be met, Impairment
loss may be required in the fulure.

14. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group Company

2021 2020 2021

uss uss uss

Intangible asset wilh indefinite uselul He 14,743 16,381 14.743
Intangible assets wilh definite useful lives 1,587 865 1,528,505 -
1,602,628 1,545,886 14,743
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14,

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible asset stated with indefinite useful life
Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss uss Uss
Internet domain name
Al beginning of year 16,381 15479 16,381
Exchange reahgnment (1,638) a0z (1.638)
At end of year 14,743 16,381 14,743
Intangible asset with definite usaful (ife lves
Patents and Customer
Group licences  Software relationships  Total
Uss uss uss uss
31 December 2021
At 1 January 2021:
Corst 108200 185958  2,1144%2 2408749
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (91471} (134,282)  (653,481)  (B79,244)
Met carrying amount 18,828 51,666 1,461,011 1.529 505
Cost at 1 January 2021,
net of accumulated amortisation and
impairment 18,528 51666 1,461,011 1.529 505
Additions 103 679 19,6849 - 123,328
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and
businesses (Mobe 33) - - 242,124 242 124
Wiite-off {3,101} - - {3,101)
Amortisation provided during the year (16,564} (29.624)  (234.%23) (281,111)
Exchange realignment {240} (3.823) (18,097} (22,860)
At 31 Decamber 2021 88 902 37663 1,450,115 1.587 885
Al 31 December 2021:
Cost 163,397 160,674 2,336,323 2,660,554
Aceumulated amartisation and
impalmment (834930  (123.006)  (B86.208) (1.07Z.T09)
Metl carnying amount &8 802 37.BBE 1,450,115 1.587 8BS
P 5 B
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¥CP Holdings {Global) Limited

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

14, OTHER INTANGIBELE ASSETS [continued)
ntangible assets with definite ussful lives (continued)

Patents and Customer
Group licences  Trademarks Software relationships Total
uss uss LIss Uss Uss

31 Decembaer 2020
Ad 1 January 5020

Cosl 172,053 24056 452814 2114482 2783525

Accumulated amedisation

and impairmant {(100.878) (24.056) (238,830} (415818)  (TTO.FTE)

Mot camying amount 71.085 = 213984 1 69BETT 1983746
Costat 1 January 2020,

et of accumulated

amartisation and impairrment 71,085 - 213884 1 B9EETT 1983746
Additions 18,605 - 41,898 - 60,403
Acquistions of subsidiaries and

businesses (Note 33) - - 788 - TEE
Disposals {14.556) - [17,272) - {31.828)
Disposal of subsideanes and

businesses (Nota 34) (48,300} - [03,858) - {142 158)
Amaortisabion provided during

the year (11.370) - (BT, 234) (186213)  (284.817)
Irparment (1,511) - [14,858) = (18,368)
Exchange realignment 2885 = 8,208 {51,453) (40,360)
AL 31 December 2020 16,828 = 51885 1481011 1520505
Al 31 December 2020

Cosl 108 299 - 185958 2114402 2408749

Accumulated amaontisation

and impaarment (91.471) - (134,292}  (653481)  (B70.244)

Met camying amaount 16 B2E - 1668 1460011 1520505

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment of USS$16,389 was
recognised for the patents and licences and software with a camying amount before provision
of US$16,369 because the business of the mtemel media services had been loss-making in
recent years.

-T2 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2021
uss

Unguoted equity shares, at cost
Balance at beginning of financial year 15,140,259
Additions 384,288
Impairment (449 B70)
Exchange realignment [1,305.727)
Balance at end of financial year 13,748,850

On 31 August 2021, the Company further injected JPY40,000000 (equivalent to
US5364,288) of capital into an existing subsidiary, YCP Lifemate, Inc.. The capital injection
contribution was satisfied through full cash settlement.

Buring the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company provided for impairment of
subsidanes amountad 1o USS449 870 as ihe carrying amount of certain subsidiaries
exceeded its recoverable amount.
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries al 31 December 2021 are sel oul in
Mote 1 to the financial statemeants,

16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss LUss uss

Interest in joint veniure - _ _

Particulars of the jint vaniure which is held by the Company is as follows:

Particulars Percentage of
of issued Place of ownership
MName shares held incorporation interest Principal activities
MG Ordinary Japan 100 Provision of supporting
shares (2020: 300  services for graveyard
(Mote 33)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had discontinued the
recognition of its share of losses of MG because the accurmulated share of lossas of the joint
venlure exceeded the Group's interest in the joint venture and the Group had no oblgation
to take up further losses, The Group's unrecognised share of profits of this joint veniure and
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses was amounted o US$146,655 and US$510,995,
respectivaly,

- T3 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

16, INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
On 1 January 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire the

remamning 50% equity interest in MG. Details are descrbed in Mole 33 to the financial
statements.

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss Uss uss
Interest in associates 303,557 283,117 4436820

Particulars of the principal associates which are held by the Company are a5 follows:

Particulars Percentage
of issued Placeof  of ownership
Mame shares held incorporation  interest Principal activities
ARUKI Cor, Lid, Ordinary Japan 250 Crperation of
shares reslaurants in the food

and beverage industry

Held through Aruki Co, Lid:
BARC Co. Ltd Ordinary Japan 250 Crperation of

sharas restaurants in the faod

and beverage industry

The fobiowing table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's associates
that is not individually matesial;

Group
2021 2020
Uss uss
Aggregate carmying amount of the Growp's investments in
assnciates
- Share of net labiliies (B,274) (63,356)
- Goodwill on acquisition 311,834 346,473
303,557 &|3INT
Share of the associates' profit{loss) for the year 51,084 (219,478)
Share of the associates’ other comprehensive (loss)income (30,624) 22,187
Share of the associates' lotal comprehensive income!(loss) 20,440 (107,274)

274
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

18,

19,

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss uss uss
ity [Pvesime fair value throu il o |
Listed equity investment, al fair value
Ipat Holdings, Inc., 8857003 9054048  8BET.O02

The above equsty investment at 31 December 2021 was classified as equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss as the Group had not imevocably elected to classily at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The fair value information related to FYTPL = equity instrument is disclosed in Note 38 to the
financial statements,

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's listed equity investmants with a carrying value of
US$EB,857,903 (2020: USSD 954 546) were pladged as security for the Group's bank loans,
as further dedailad in Note 26 (o the financial statamaents.

INVENTORIES
Group
2021 2020
uss uss
Raw materials 132,664 200,488
Finished goods 2,406,748 1,760,388

2.539.412 1,960,856

=75 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

20,

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS

Group
2021 2020
Uss Uss
Trade recaivablas 7.842 3099 ¥.060.380
Impairment losses (56,343) (85,837)

7.786,058 5964543
Contract assats® 841,539 638,571

872r.585 7663114

& Contract assets relate 10 revenue earned from ongoing advisory services, As such,
the balance varies and depends on the number of ongoing advisory services al the
end of the year. The expected credil losses of contract assels as al 31 December
2021 were considered to be minimal, Tha expacied timing of recovery or setflement
for contracl assets as at 31 December 2021 s within one year.

The Group's trading terms with its cuslomers are mainly on credil. except for new cuslomerns,
where payment in advance is normally required, The credit period is generally one month.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks bo maintain sirict control over
its oulstanding receivables, Overdue balances are reviewed regulardy by sendior
management. 1n view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
redate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does nol hold any coltateral or other credit enhancements over ils
trade receivable balances. Trade recernables are non-interast-bearing,
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

20, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The movements in provision of impairment of frade receivables are as follows:

Group
2021 2020
uss Uss
Al 1 January a5, 837 145,550
Pravision for/{reversal of) impairmant (Nate 8) 5,263 (40,202)
Amaounts wiilten off as uncollectibbs {44,757} 8.511)
Al 31 December 56,343 95 837

An impairment analysis is pedormed st each reporiing date using a provision mairix to
measure expected credil losses. The provision rales are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segmenis with similar loss pattems (i.e., customer type and
ratng). The calculation reflects the probabikty-weighted oulcome, the time value of money
ardd reasonabla and supportabla information that 1s available at the reporting date abaut past
evenls, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions. Generally, trade
recaivables are written off if uncollectable for more than one year and are not subject o

enforcement activity.
As at 31 December 2024
Past due
Lessthan 1to3 Ower 3
Group Current 1 month  months months Total
Expected credit loss rate 0.71% 0.24% 1.60% 12.53% 0.72%
Trade receivables [USE) 8,644,758 917,191 250,194 21,255 7,842,300

Expected credil losses (USE) 47,209 2,242 4,138 2,664 56,343

As at 31 December 2020

Past due
Lessthan 1to3 Over 3
Group Current 1 maonth  months months Tatal
Expected credil loss rale 0.13% 0.21% 1.52% 26.28% 1.36%
Trade receivablas (USS5) 5,336,258 1,074 248 363,881 285,182 T.060,380
Expacted credit losses (USE) 7,118 2,247 5515 B0 257 a5 837

- T7 =
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVAELES

Group Company
2021 2020 2021
uss uss Uss
Prapayrmenis BEY, 709 1012243 -
Deposits and ather receivables 2517 226 2995384 21382
Amount due from subsidianes (Note a) - - 1,483 710
3,184,935 4,007 827 1,505,102

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
classified as non-current assets (871,078) (1,170,587) -
Current portion 2313857 2837030 1,505,102

The carrying amount other receivables approximate fair value at 31 December 2021, Thewr
recoverabililty was assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the
expected credit losses as at 31 December 2021 were considered 1o be minimal.

Mote:

(a) Amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-inlerest bearing and repayable on

demand,

22 LOAN TOHFROM) A SUBSIDIARY

Loan io a subsidiary (Mote a)
Loans from a subsidiary (Mot b)

Motes:

Company
20
uss

521,648

{11,737.089)

(@) The lpan 1o & subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

(b) The loans from a subsidiary are unsecured, inlerest bearing at 1.85% to 2.76% and

repayable within one year.

- 78 -
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23, CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group Company

2021 2020 2021

uss uss Uuss

Cash and bank balances 38,512,897 9,763,255 27218166
Time deposits 148,113 143,450 -

30661010 9908705 27818166

Less: Pledged time deposits (Nole a) (148,113}  ({143.450) -
Cash and cash equivalenis 38512887 9763255 27818166
doke:

(a)  AL31 December 2021, the Group's lime deposits of WSS148,113 (2020: US5143.450)
were pledged lo secure certain banking facilites granted to the Group (Note 26).

Al the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group denominated in
RME amounted lo US$388 432 (2020: USS5525,353). The RME is not freely convertibbe into
other cumrencies, however, under Mainland China's Foresgn Exchange Control Regulations
and Adminisiration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RME for other currencies through banks authonsed o
conduct loreign exchange business.

Cash at banks eams interest al floating rales based on daily bank deposil rales. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

24, TRADE PAYABLES

Group
2024 2020
uss uss
Trade payables 2,532,537 2,012,480

The trade payables are non-inferast-bearing and are normally setfied on 30-day terms
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25, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group Company

2021 2020 2021

uss LS5 Uss

Contract [mabilities (Mole a) 238,181 7.563 -
Other payables (Nate b) 3,801,841 4,206,704 =
Accruats (Note b) 7,188,014 5,084,329 2233823
Provisions (Mote ) 561,853 579,642 -
Amount due to subsidiaries (Mote d) - - 125,531

11,799,989 9878238 2359354
Oihar payables and aceruale classified as

non-current labilities (544 84T) (G684 46T =
Current portion 11,255,142 921371 2,350 354
Motes:

{a) Contract labilties include short-term advancas recaived 1o daliver advisory senvices.
The changes in contract labilities maknly vary and depend on the number of short-tenm
advances received from customers at the end of the year,

{b) Oiher payables and accruals ara non-interest-bearing and have an average lerm of
one maonth.

(¢}  Provisions perlain to the estimated costs of restoning the Group's leased assets,
axpacted to be ulilised at the end of tha respective leasa terms. Movement in tha
provisions as at 31 December is as follows:

Group

2024 2020

uss USs
Al 1 January 570,642 381,79
Additions 15,494 173,112
Acquisitions through subsidiaries and businessas 7413 -
Disposal of subsidianies - {14)
Exchange realigrment (40,60G) 18,753
31 December 561,853 579,842

{d)  Amount due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

27,

LEASE LIABILITIES

The camrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are as follows:

Amaunts payable:
Within one year
In the second fo fifth years,
inclusive
After five years

Total minimum lease paymeants

Fulure finance charges

Total net lease paysbles
Portion classified as cument
liabilities

Mon-eurrent portion

2021 2020
Prasent Presant
value of value of
Minimum Minirmum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments  payments  payments
uss uss uss uss
2,368,509 2,271,048 3,131,108 3,068 881
1.523 889 1,688 484 1,604,344 1,568,004
444,333 228,994 236,343 228097
4.338,731 4,188,526 4871783 4 B854 B52
(138, 203) (106.941)
4,198,526 4,864 852
{2.271,048) (3,086 B81)
1.827 478 1,797.991

Movements of carmying amounts of lease labilities during the year are as follows:

Al 1 Januany
Additsons

Acquisitions through subsidianies and businesses (Mate 33)

Temination of leases
Accretion of interest
Paymenis

Cowvid-18-related rent concessions from lassors

Exchange realignment

Al 31 Decambar

- 83 -
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2021 2020

uss uss
4864852  4,B30E7S
3490053 3845582
592763 1,768,989
(872,027)  (BB2.057)
104,080 147,840
(3,707,036 (3,043,082)
(120.816)  (791.495)
{181,453 68,320
4196526 4,864,852
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27, LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

Group

2021 2020

uss uss
Intarest on lease liabilities (Nole 8) 104,080 147,840
Depreciation charge of righl-of-use assets (Note ) 3631652 4,580,241
Expenses relaling o short-lerm leases (Mote §) ari.se2 263,000
Gain on lermination of leases (Mote §) (T2.599) (31.142)
Cowid-19-related renl concessions fom lessors {120,816)  (791.495)
Impairment of right-of-use assats 236,163 63,538
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 4150172 4232072

The Group had total cash outllows for leases of USS4,079,618 (2020: US84,207.072). The
Group also had non-cash additions of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
US33,499,053 (2020: US$3,645,562).
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28, DEFERRED TAX
The movemenis in deferred tax liabilities and asseis during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liahitities

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Accelerated acquisition
tax of Right-of-
depreciation subsidiaries use assets  Others Total
uss uss uss Uss uss
ALY January 2020 23,831 283775 B51.827 104,078  1,268.561

Disposal of subsidianas

and businesses

(Mote 34) e - - 24,185 24185
Daferred tax credited o

profit or loss during

thve year (Mote 10) (22,131) (31,857) (314,557) (28,508) (408,851)
Exchange realignment 552 (8,747} 39,802 4,831 36238

Gross defemed tax

liabiliies al

31 December 2020

amd 1 January 2021 2,302 248 371 576872 24 588 922 133
Acquisition of

subsidiares and

businesses

(Mete 33) - - 13,466 1,584 15,060
Deferred tax

(credited Yeharged 1o

prafit or lass during

he year (Note 10) (43) (31,707) 346279 61,055 375,584
Exchange realignment (44) —  (f4489) (12382) (B692S)

Gross defemed lax
liahilities at
3 Decembar 2021 2,215 216,664 862,118 144 855 1 225852

- 85 -
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

28, DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Defered tax assals
Dafined Provision

benefit and other Lease
liabilities Tax losses liabilities  liabilities Total
uss uss uss uss uss

Ad 1 January 2020 - 188,715 365,610 B80.097 1,434 422
Acquisition of

subsidianes and

businesses

(Mote 33) - - 20,081
Deferred tax credited/

(charged) bo profit o

loss during the year

{MNote 10) 20,323 313.506 360,959 (335083} 359,695
Deferred tax cradited 1o

ather comprehensive

income during the year

(Mole 29) 1,428 - - - 1,428
Exchange reahignment 48T 20.050 32,299 38,715 82,531

]

20,081

Gross defemed tax assets

at 31 December 2020

amd 1 January 2021 22,218 522211 778,920 584.719 1,908137
Acquisition of

subsidianies and

businesses

(MNote 33) - 282854 13,928 12808 309,490
Deferred tax creditad/

(charged) to profit or

loss duning the year

(Mote 10) 3,630 62,500 {13,083} 303,662 356,699
Deferred tax credited to

other comprehensive

income during the year

{Mote 29) 1,646 - - - 1,546
Exchange realignment (8,299)  (83.383) (74,381)  (73.420) (240483)

Gross dafemed lax assats
at 31 December 2021 18,195 Ta4.042  TO5,383 627269 2335489
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Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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28, DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (confinued)

For presentation purposes, cerain deferred tax assels and liabiliies within individual
subsidianes have besn offset in the statement of financial posiion. The following is an
analysis of the defermed tax balances of the Group for financial reporling purposes:

Group
2021 2020
uss uss
Mat defarmed tax assats recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial pesition 1,338,808 1,237,353
et detemed tax liabilities recognised in ihe consoldated
statemant of financial position (229171} (251,349)
1,109,837 086,004

Deferred tax assets have not been recagnised in respect of the following items:

Group Company

2021 2020 2021

uss Uss Uss

Tax losses 3,706,851 3,087,189 =

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of U552 430,837 (2020: US52,002,057) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against fulure taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose, The Group also has unrecognised lawx losses of USS1.275.914 (2020:
UESS1,085,132) that will explre in one (o ten years for offsatting against future taxable of the
campanies in which the losses arose.

Defered tax assets have not been recognised in respec! of these lossas as they have ansen

in subsidiaries that is not considerad probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be ufilisad.

- &7 -
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29, DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITIES

The Group recognised emplayment benefit liabilities for all its qualifying employees pursuant
1o Indonesia Labour Law No. 132003, The provision for employment benafits is based on
the caleulation by an independent actuary, Kantor Konsultan Aktuaria Steven & Mourits,
using the projected unit credit aciuarial valuation method.

The mowements in the defined benefit liabilties as follows:

2021 2020

uss uss
AL 1 January 100,982 -
Service cost
- current year 38,325 87,972
- CWETPIOVISIoN in previous years {26,951) -
Interest expense 5124 4,407
Actuarial changes ansing from:
- changes in demographic assumptions (295} -
- changes in financial assumptions (1,675) {24,367)
- changes in expenence adjustments 9,453 30,857
Exchange reahgnment 18 2123
Al 31 Decamber 124,201 100,892

The amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to the
defined benefit expense ane as follows:

Note 021 2020
Uss uss
Defined banefit axpanse changed fo or loss
Service cost 11.374 87,872
Interest expense 5124 4,407
16,488 82,379
Defered tax effact 28 {3,630) (20.323)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss,
net of lax 12.868 72,056
Remeasurerment lossesi{gains) in other
—
Actuanal changes ansing frodmn:
- changes in demographic assumptions (285) -
- changes in financial assumptions {1,675) {24,387)
= changes in expenence adjustment 0,453 30,857
Deferred tax effect 28 1.648) {1.428)
Total amount recognised in olher comprehensive
income, net of tax 5,837 5082
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29, DEFINED BEENEFIT LIABILITIES (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporiing period are as follows:

2024 2020
Discount rate (%) T80 7.04
Retirement age (years old) 58 56
Expected rate of salary increases (%) 10 i0

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of the repariing
period is shown below:

2021
Increasef
Increasel  (decrease) in
{decrease) in defined benefit
rate obligation
%

Uss
Discount rate (1) (21, 706)27,140
Future salary (1) 28,587/(21.715)
2020
Increasal

Increasel  (decrease) in
{decrease) in defined benefit

rate obligation
% uss
Discount rate (1) (18,663Y23 467
Future salary Wiy 22.5330(18.383)

The sensilivity analysis above has been determined based on a methed (hal extrapolates
the impact on defined benefit abdities as a result of reasonable changes in kay assumplions
occwming at the end of the reporting period, The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in
a significant assumptlion, keeping all other assumptions constant.  The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an aclual change in the defined benefit liabilities as it is undikely
that changes in assumgptions would occur in isclation of one another.

0. SHARE CAPITAL

2021
uss

Issued and fully paid: 19,626,676 (2020 Nd) crdinary shares 32992 969
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30, SHARE CAPITAL {continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

Number of
shares in
issue Share capital
uss
Issue of share upon incorporation (Mole a) 1 1
Issue of shares upon Recrganisation Exercise under
common control (Mote b) 15,881,275 7,141,379
Shares repurchase (Note c) (212 462) {188.310)
Mew shares issue (Note d) 32482 162,310
Issua of shares under initial public offering (Note a) 3,825400 28,520 615
Initial public offering expenses (Note f) - (2,672,026)
At 31 December 2021 19,626,676 32992 989
Motes;

(@) On 5 March 2021, the Company allotted and issued 1 share of the Company at a
consideration of 381 (equivalent 1o US$0.75). On 5 May 2021, the Compamny
redencminated its share capital from 53 to USS, the existing issued and paid-up capital
of 551 comprising 1 ordinary share was redenominated to USS0.TS.

(b)  On 5May 2021, the Company aliotted 14,550,000 shares at US30.033 per share and
1,331,275 shares al USS5 par share o YAM, in considerabon of (i) the anlire assels
and habilities including the group management service business owned by YAM,
axcapt for the dedvative financial instruments, olbher l@bdities and employea share
options; and (1) the entire share ownarship of the subsidiares, joint venture and
associates owned by YAM, as part of the Recrganisation Exercise,

{c} ©On 7 October 2021 and 21 Oclober 2021, the Company repurchased and cancelled
180,000 and 32,462 of its own shares, respectively, at total cash consideration of
US$168,310 in aggregate.

{d)  On 16 November 2021, the Company allotied and issued 32 462 ordinary shares for a
cash consideration of USS162,310.

() In connection with the Company's initial public offering. 3,825,400 ordinary shares
were isswed at a price of USST 268 per share for a lotal cash consideration, before
share Bsue expenses, of US28,529.615,

(f)  Total listing expenses (including underwriting commissions) incumed pursuant to the
Company's listing on the Tokyo Stock Exchange amounted 1o US$4, 082 B72, of which
share issuance expanses of US$2,672,026 have been deducted against share capital
ared US$1,410,846 has bean recorded in the consalidated statament of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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M. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Exchange NMuctuation résena

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences ansing from the ranslation
of the financial statemeants of foreign operations and from the translation of financial liability
designated as a hedge of nel investment in the foreign operations, as well as foreign
exchange differences on monetary items which form part of the Group's net investments in
he foreign operaticns.

Defined benefil resanve

Defined benefit reserve comprises the gain or oss on remeasurement of defined benefits
plans of certain subskliaries. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses, returm
on plan assets and any change in the effect of the assel ceiling (excluding net interest on
defined benefit liabilties are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the
pericd in which they anse.) Remeaswements are recognised in retained profits and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequant periods.

Merger resene

Merger resenve reprasents the difference between the consideration paid and the net assets
acquired from YAM as part of the Reorganisation Exerclse described in Note 1.2 1o the
financial statements,

Dwring the year ended 31 December 2020, movement in merger raserve represents
transactions entered into by YAM which resulted In changes in net assets thatl were acqulred
by the Company as part of the Reorganisation Exercise.

3z SHARE OFTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards 1o eligible participants who conlribuls to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include a director and cerlain employees of
the Growp. Tha Scheme bacame effactive on 1 July 2021 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 6 years from the date of the successful listing of the
Company in any recognised stock exchange ("IPO Data™).

Tha following share options wene outstanding under the Schame during the year:
Under the Scheme, eligible participants are granted options which only vest on the conditions
that (i) the graniee remain as employes with the Group for 3 vears from the IFO Date: and

{ii) certain markel conditions and performance target of the Growp are mel. Once vested, the
oplions remain exercisable until 8 years from the |PO Date

-0 -
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a2, SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Weighted
average
exercise
price per
share Number of
uss oplions
Al 1 January 2021 - -
Granted during the year 5.00 1,088 579
Forfeited during the year 5,00 {3.201)
Al 31 December 2021 5.00 1,085,378

As at 31 December 2021, no outstanding share options were exercisable,

The fair value of the share oplions granted during the year was US$851.954 (approximately
S50, 78 each), of which the Group recogniced a share oplion expenses of USE123,219
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The fair value of equity-setiied share oplions granted during the year, was estimaled as al
the date of grant using a binomial model, aking into account management’s best estimate
for the effects of non-iransferability and exercise restrictions (including the probabillty of
meeting market conditions attached to the options); and tarms and conditions wpon which
the options were granted, The following table lisis the inputs to the modal used:

20
Dividend yield (%) 4.37
Expected volatilily (%) 38,01
Risk-free interest rate (%) 147
Expacted life of options (years) 6.5
Weighted average share price (LSS per share) 4.96

The expected life of the oplions is based on tha historical data over the past years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise pattems that may occur. The expacted volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatilty is indicative of future trends, which may also nat
necessarily be the aciual oulcome,

Al the end of the reporting period, the Company had 1,085,378 share oplions outstanding
under the Scheme. The axercisa in full of the outstanding share options would, under the

present capital structure of the Company, resull in the issue of 1,085,378 additional cedinary
shares and additional share capital of USS5 426,800 (before issue expenses).

- 92 .
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

i) Omn 1 January 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire
the remaming 50% equily interest in MG, a company principally engaged in the
supparting service of columbarium. The total consideration for the equily interest
amounted to JPY16,000,000 (equivalent to USS5154.085). Subseguent 1o the
acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest, the joint venture investmant in MG
became a wholly-owned subsadiary of the Group theneafter.

i}  On 1 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreament 10 acquirg
the 100% equity interest in Sapporo Midorigaoka Veterinary Hospital (*Sapporo™), a
company principally engaged in ihe operation of velerinary hespilal. The iotal
consideration for the equity interest amounted to JPY127,000,000 (eguivalent to
US$1,205163),

iliy On 31 January 2020, the Group enlered into (i) a sale and purchase agreemeant 1o
acquire the equity interest in J-Foods Hong Kong Limited ("J-Foods™), a company
principally engaged in the operation of Japanese style restaurant in the food and
beverage indusiry; and {il} a debt assignment agreement to purchase the total debts
payable to the ex-shareholders of J-Foods. The total consideration for the equity
interest and the debl assignment amounfed to approximately JPYS0,000,000
{equivalent o US$553,083) in the form of cash. The acquesition nesulled in a gain on
bargain purchase of US%$1,590,312, which s attributable to the Group's bargaining
power and abilty in negotiatng the agreed terms of the transaction with the saller.

W) On 31 July 2020, Lifemate Veterinary Hospital Group, Inc. entered Inio (i) a sale and
purchase agreament o acquire 100% equily inlerest in Ecoroguard, a company
principally engaged In the operation of velerinary hospital; and (i) a debt assignmenl
agreament to seifle certain the fotal debls payable to the ex-shareholders of
Ecoroguard. The total consideration for the equily Interest and the debl assignment
amounted o approcimately JPY 189,000,000 {equivalent to US$1,825,736) in the form
of cash.
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assats and liabilities of the above acquisitions as at the
dates of acquisitions were as lollows:

2021
Fair value recognised on
acquisition of
Notes MG Sapporo Total
Uss Uss Uss

Praperty, plant and equipmant 12 32 451 48,244 81,705
Otther intangible assets 14 = 242124 242124
Deferred tax asseis 28 292 480 1,950 284 430
Right-of-use assets 12 48,920 342,843 582,763
Trade recevables 48,530 - 48,530
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables 13,834 131,712 145,646
Invenlories - 41,899 41,699
Cash and bank balances 80,482 - £9.482
Lease labllites ar (49,9200 (542 B43) (592,763)
Trade payables (4,237) - 14,237}
Other payables and accruals (215,996) {22, 754) {238.750)
Interest-bearing bank and other bormowings {1,897 148) = 1,887 148)
Tolal identifiable net assets at fair value {1,640,402) 444175 (1,196,317)
Goodwill on acquisitions 1,784 577 760,988 2 555565
Satishied by cash 154,085 1,205,163 1,158,248
Cash consideration (154,085) (1,205.163) (1,350.248)
Cash and bank balances sequined 89,482 - E9.482
Prapayment * 154,085 - 154,085
Met cash inflow/outflow) BB4B2  (1,205.183) (1,115.681)

The io1al consideration for the acquisition of MG was prepaid in advance in the prior year,
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

2020
Fair value recognised on acquisition of
Motes Ecoroguard J-Food Total
uss uss uss
Property, plant and equipment 12 325,541 583,284 1,018,825
Other intangible assets 14 630 108 798
Delerred tax assets 28 20,061 - 20,061
Right-of-use assets 12 254340 1,515,649 1,765,989
Trade receivables 63,788 16,938 B0, 722
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables 153,039 1,516,184 1,668,223
Inventaries 48,158 T2 204 120,362
Cash and bank balances 48 452 273470 321,032
Lease liabilities 27 (254.340)  (1,515649) (1,760.989)
Trade payables (172,957 {134 568) (307 665)
Other payables and accruals {202,757) {294,123) {496,920)
Deferred tax iabilities 28 {24,185) - {24,185)
Tolal identifiable net assets at fair value 258,748 2,143,395 2403143
Gain on bargain purchase g - {1,590,312)  (1,590,312)
Goodwill on acquisitions 13 1,565,988 - 1,565.988
1,825,738 553,083 2378819

Cash consideration {1,825,7386) {553,082y (2,378.B19)
Cash and bank balances acquired 48,452 273470 321,822
Met cash outfiow (1,777 284) (279.,613)  (2,056.897)

MG contributed revenue of US31,022 432 and prafit of US58.910; and Sapporo contributed
reverwe of WSS1,108.880 and profit of USS00,T82 to the Group for the vear ended
31 December 2021. Had the business combinaticns of Sapporo laken place al the begnning
af 2021, the revenua and profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
have been US573,285.801 and US$4,980 870, respectively.

J-Foods contributed revenue of US$3,171,262 and loss of US5751,473; and Ecoroguard
contributed revenue of US3587 008 and profit of US5113,622 to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020. Had the business combinations of J-Foods and Ecoroguard taken place
at the beginning af 2020, the revenue and profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been USS60,775,719 and US$E,280 076, respechvely.
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34, DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND BUSINESSES

et assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Diher intangible assets
Imventonies
Trade receivables

Motes

12
14

Prapaymants, depasits and ather receivables

Cash and bank balances
Trade payables
Oiher payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Income tax payable
Total entifiable nel assats at fair valua
(Loss)gain on disposal of subsidisries and
businesses

Salishod by cash

2029 2020

uss uss
6,599 16,573
= 142,158
3182 27,849
16,686 25,464
312 72,817
T.757 21,084
(2,790) (10.732)
(3,084} (62.935)
- (5B.539)
- {17.581)
28,662 155 958
(18.224) 466 537
10,438 622 485

An anakysis of the net outllow of cash and eash equivalents in respect of the disposal of

subsidiaries is as follows:

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances disposed of

Met inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respact of the

disposal of subsidiaries and businassaes

a5, NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)  Major non-cash transactions

2021 2020
uss USS
10,438 822,495
{7.757) (21.084)
2681 801,411

During the year 31 December 2021, the Group had non-cash additions 1o nght-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of US53,499,053 (2020; USE3,645,562) and USS3 498,053

(2020: US$3,645.562), respeclively.
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35,

MOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

{b)

{c)

Changes in lizbilities arising from financing activitias

At 1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows.

MNew leases

Increase arising from acguisiion of subsidiaries
{Mote 33)

Decrease ansing from early lermination of leases

Decrease ansing from disposal of subsidiaries and
businesses (Mote 34)

Interest axpanses

Interest paid classified as financing cash flows

Covid=12-related rent concessions from lessors

Foreign exchange movement

Al 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash fiows

Mew leases

Increéase arising from acquisition of subsidianes
{Note 33)

Decrease arising from early lermination of leases

Interest expenses

Interest pald classified as financing cash Nows

Covid-12-related rent concessions rom lessors

Fareign exchange movement

At 31 December 2021

Total cash outflow for leases

Interest-
bearing bank
and other
borrowings
{excluding
Lease bank
liabilities overdrafts)
uss uss
4, B30,675 15275072
(3,796,142} (1,452,580}
3,645,562 -
1,760,985 -
{882,057} -
- (58,539)
147,840 369,026
{147,840) (369,026)
{791,495) -
£8,320 854,135
4 BB 852 14,618,089
(3,603.848)  (2858.3687)
3,458,053 -
592,763 1.897 146
{B72.027) -
104,080 258,661
{104,000} [258,661)
{120,816) -
(161,453)  (1.260,132)
4,188,526 12595742

The total cash outflow for leases included In the consolidated statement of cash flows

is as follows;

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

- a7 .

270/302

2021 2020
Uss Uss
371,882 263,080
3,707,938 3,843,982
4079618 4,207,072




EDINETOOOO
ODOo00oDOo0oDoooooo0boogOooo(esr220)
oOoOooodn

YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Mobes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the financial years ended 31 December 2021

36.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions detailed eisewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following matenal transactions with the relaled parties dunng the year 31 December
2021 and 2020-

(8)  On13November 2020, YAM allotted 25,000 ordinary shares fo certain directors, which
provided LS$125,000 to the Group for working capital purpose.

() Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

2021 2020
uss Uss
Short term employee benefits 3487164 2,818,840
Share option expenses 9,308 2170

3478472 2.520,810

Further datails of the directors’ emeluments are included in Note @ to the financial
statameanls.

ar. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2021 2020
uUs§ uss
Financial assels
Firancial assels al fair value through profit or loss -
designaled a5 such upan iniial recogmition;
Equity investiments at fair value through profd or loss 857003 0954045
Amortised cost
Trade receivables 7.786,056 6,964 543
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and olher
receivables 2517226 2995384
Cash and bank balances 38 661,010 9,906,705

576822195 29821578
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ar.

a8,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

2021 2020
uss uss
Financial kabilities
Amavtised cost
Trade payables 2,532,537 2,012.490
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accrals 5,805,081 4,831,810
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 12,595,742 14,703,004
Leass liabiliies 4,198,528 4,864 852

25,131,886 26,411,956

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Tha fair value of a finrancial instrument s the amount al which the instrument could be
exchanged or settied between knowledgeable and willing paries in an arm’s length
transaction, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

i vl

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
slatemenis are caleqorised within the fair value hierarchy, descnbed as follows, based on
the: lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1= based on quoled pnces (unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets or
liabildias

Level 2= based on valuation techmeques for which the lowest level input that is significant
{o the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3= based on valuation techmiques for which the lowest level input that is significant
{a the fair value measurement is unobservable

Fair value measuramenis ihal use inpuls of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its
enlirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
1o the emnire measurement.

2721302
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38,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AMD LIABILITIES (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade receivables, deposils and other
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables, other payables and accruals and
current porfion of interesi-bearing bank and other bormowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these mstruments, no material change in
credit risk of counterparty, or with flosting interest rates.

The fair values of the non-current portion of inlerest-bearing bank and other bamowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently avaiable
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, The changes in fair
valuz as a resull of the Group's non-perfarmance risk for interest-bearing bank and cther
bormowings as at 31 Decamber 2021 were assessed fo be insignificant.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged In a current transacbion between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

Faur value hararchy

The following table Bustrate the fair value measuremant hierarchy of the Group's equity
investment al fair value throwgh profit or loss as al 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Firancial insiruments measured at fair value
Fair Value measurement using

Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Lewvel 3) Total
uss uss uss uss
31 December 2021 §.657.903 - - 8,857,903
31 December 2020 9,954 348 - - 9,954,946

The fair value of ihe listed equily invesiment in Japan is dedved rom quoted prices in active
markets.

- 100 -
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39, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities. The main purpose of thesa financial instruments is 1o raise
finance for the Group's operalions. The Group has various other financial assels and
liabilittes such as Irade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
aperations.

Thea main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and equity price risk, The direciors review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below,

Interest rafe sk

Tha Group's expasure to tha risk of changes in market interast rate risks relates primarily to
the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with foating interest rates. The
effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the inferest-bearing bank and other
bormowings of the Group are disclosed in Mote 26 to the financial statements. Inlerest rate
risk is managed on an ongoing basis with the primary objective of limiting the extent io which
nel interest expense could be alfecied by adverse movements in interest rates.

Assuming the bank and other bormowings at the end of the reporting penod were cutstanding
for the whole year, a 100 basis point increaseldecrease in inferest rates would
decreasefincrease the Group's profit before tax for the cument year by approximatety
US55125,8957 (2020: USS5147.030). In the opinion of the directors, the sensitivity o the
interest rate used above is considered reasonable with the other variables held constant.

Credif sk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on s contractual obligations
resulling in @ loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk anses primarily from
trade and other receivables. For other financial assels (mainly cash at banks), the Group
minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties,

The Group has adopted a policy of anly dealing with creditwarthy counterparties, The Group
pertorms ongoing credit evaluation of ils counterparties’ financial condition and generally do
nol reguire a collateral,

The Group considers the probability of defaull upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in oredit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period.

Tha Group has defermined the detault event on a financial asset to ba whan internal and’or
exiemal information indicates that the financial asset is undikely to be received or when there
is significant difficulty of the counterparty.
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39, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

To minimise credit risk, the Group has developed and maintained the Group's credit risk
gradings to calegorise exposures according to iheir degree of risk of defaull. The credit raling
information is supplied by publicly available financial information and the Group's own trading
records to rale its major customers and olher deblors. The Group considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information which includes the following
indicators:

- Intarmal cradit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expecled to cause a significant change to the deblor's ability ta
meet its abligations

Tha Group datermined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the debtor

- A breach of contract, such as a defaull or past due event

- It is becoming probable that the deblor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reciganisation

The Group calegorises a recewvable for polential write-off when there is evidence indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the debtor has no realistic prospect of
TECOVETY.

Maximum exposure and year-end steging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on
the Group's credit palicy, which is mainly based on past due information unless ather
information ks available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as al
31 December 2021, The amounts presented are gross carmying amownts for financial assets,

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Simplified
Stage1  Stage2  Stage3 approach  Total
uss uss uss uss uss
As at 31 December 2021
Trade receivables® - - - T.B42300 7.842399
Contract assals® - - - 841,539 841,539
Financial assels included
in prepayments, deposits
and other raceivables
- Normal** 2517226 - - - 2517228
Cash and bank balances 38,661,010 - - - 38,661.010
41,178,236 - — B,783938 499062174
- 102 -
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39, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging {continued)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
Uss uss uss uss Uss
As at 31 December 2020
Trade receivables* - - - T7.080380 7060380
Contract assals® - - - 693,571 698 571
Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposils
and other receivables
= Mormal** 2,905 384 - - - 2995384
Cash and bank balances  §,908,705 - - - 9908705
12,902,089 - - 7,758,951 20661040

For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information is disclosed in Note 20 to the financial
statements.

*  The credit quality of e financial assets includad in prepayments, deposits and othar
receivables is considerad to be “nommal™ when they are nol past dug and there i no
information indicating thal the financial assets had a significant increase in aeadit risk
since initial recognition.  Otherwise, the credid quality of the financkal assets is
considared o be "doubiful”.

Tha Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. 1t is the Group's policy
that all customers who wish 1o trade on credit terms are subject o credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis,

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposune to credit risk arising from trade
receivables and confract assets are disclosed in Note 20 o the financial siatements.,

Liquidtity risk
Tha Group monitors its risk (o a shorage of funds using a recurring liguidity planning tool.
This ool considers the maturily of both s fnancial inslruments and financial assets and

projected cash fiows from operations. The Group's objective is to meiniain a balance
between continuity of funding and Rexibdity,
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39, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (comtinued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reparting period,
based on the contraciual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2024

Trade payables

Financial kakilities included
in other payables and
accruals

Interest-bearing bank and
other bomowings

Lease liahiktias

2020

Trade payabies

Financial kabilities included
in olher payables and
accruals

Interest-bearing bank and
ather borrowings

Lease liabikties

Equity price nisk

Within 1ws Over

Ondemand 1 year years 5 years Total

uss uss uss uss uss
- 2932537 - - 2,932,537
- 5,805,081 - - 5,805.081
1,723,624 3952707 6267013 1117332 13060676
- 2388508 1,8927.478 - 433873
1,723,624 14,658,834 8,235,235 1,117,332 25735025
= 2012480 - = 2012480
- 4,831,610 - - 4831610
B4,815 4,305803 98569894 1,230462 15478274
= 3131106 1840887 - 4871783
B4.915 14,281,109 11,607,681 1230462 272841867

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity secunites decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the values of ndvidual securities. The Group is
exposed o equity prica risk ansing from individual listed equity investments classified zs
equity investment al fair value thicugh profit o loss (Mote 18) as at 31 Decembser 2021.

The Group's listed invesiment is listed on the TSE and are valued at quoted market prices at

the end of the reporting period.
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39, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk {confinued)
The market equity index for the TSE, at the close of business of tha nearest irading day in

the year to the end of the reporting period, and the respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

2021 Highflow 2020 HighMow
uss uss uss uss
Mikkei index 28,792 30,670/27.013 27444 27,603116,358

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity 1o every 5% change in the fair values of the
equity investmants, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on flax, based
on thelr carrying amounts at the end of the reporting pericd. For the purpesa of this analysis,
for the listed equity investments designated at fair value through profit or loss, the impact is
deemed 1o be on the profit before tax.

Carrying
amount of  Changes in
equity  profit before

investment tax
uss uss
2021
Equity invesiment in Japan
Equity investmeant at fair value through profit or loss
{Mote 18) 8,857,803 442 895
2020
Equity invesiment in Japan
Equity Investment at fair value through profil or loss
(Meta 18) B854 846 497 T4T

CQither risk - Foreign currency nsk

The Group's exposure fo the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates
primasily 1o the Group's operating activities to the exten! thal revenue Of expenses
denominated in a currency that is different from the functional cumency of the relevant
subsidianes of the Group. The Group has no significant foresgn cumency risk because the
lransaction currencies areé mainly denominated in the respective local currency of the
operating subsidianies, principally the JPY, SGD, HKS and RMB which are translated and
consalidated lo the Group’s consalidated financial statemeant in USS.

Tha directors are of the view that the Group's operating cash flows and liquidity are not
subject to significant forelgn exchange rate risks and therefore no hedging arrangements
were made. Howsever, the Group will review and monitor the relevant foreign exchange
exposure from time 1o ime based on ils business development requirements and may enter
into foreign exchanga hedging arrangements when approgriaie.
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40, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as 8 going concem and 1o maintain healthy capital ratios in order o swppon
its business and maximise sharaholders’ value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustmaents to it in light of changes in
economic condtions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may returm
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assels o reduce debl. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Tha Group monitors capital by ensuring that it maintain a positive net assets value, Net
assels attributable 1o owners of the parent represent share capital, exchange fucleation
resarve and retained profits.  The net assets value attributable to owners of the parent at
31 December 2021 were as follows:

2021 2020

uss uss
Share capital 32992969 -
Resernves 17,703,854 21107234
Enquity altributable to owners of the parent 50606823 21107304

41, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 18 January 2022, the Company issued additional 384,400 ordinary shares al the price of
USS7 24T per share for a total cash consideration, before share issue expenses, of
UI5%2,840,718 as a result of exercise of over-allctment options by the underwriters,

42, COMPARATIVE FIGURES
As the Company was incorporated on 5 March 2021, the statements of financial position of
the Company does not include comparative figures,

43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of direciors on 31 March 2022
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4 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
41.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2022 155,500

(i) 2021 12 21

(i)

2022 27

1,380 ( 10,954,000 )

2022

@
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YCP Holdings (Global) Limited

Independent Auditor's Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YCP Holdings (Global) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2021, the statement of changes in equity of the Group and the Company and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated cash flows
statement of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position and the statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)”) so as to give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and
of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
and changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting
Entities (“ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Revenue recognition — in relation to business and management consultancy revenue stream

The Group recognises revenue from contracts for business and management consultancy projects over time,
based on the progress of each contract. The progress is assessed by reference to the stage of completion of the
respective contract activity (i.e., performance obligations) of its projects at the end of each reporting period. The
stage of completion is measured by reference to the cost incurred to date relative to the total estimated cost to
satisfy the performance obligation. These assessments required management to apply significant judgement and
make assumptions and estimates in measuring costs incurred for each performance obligation and total budgeted
contract costs. The subjectivity and complexity involved in these assessments can significantly impact the results of
the Group. Accordingly, we have determined this to be a key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures:

Obtained understanding of the Group’s procedures and processes for recognising revenue from contracts
with customers.

Assessed the basis for the identification of performance obligations and whether they are satisfied over time
or at a point in time. Our assessment includes examining project documents and reviewing, on a sample
basis, contractual terms and conditions and discussion with management on the performance obligations
identified.

Assessed contract revenues recognised and project costs incurred, on a sample basis, by comparing
against the relevant contracts and supporting documents which include those that support the staff costs
incurred.

Evaluated reasonableness of management’s estimates used to determine total costs to complete for
individual contracts.

Assessed the arithmetic accuracy of the revenue recognised based on the stage of completion calculations
made for individually significant projects.

Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of significant accounting policies for revenue from contracts with
customers, judgement and methods used in estimating revenue, contract assets, and contract liabilities.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2021, net carrying value of goodwill of the Group amounted to US$13.7 million. The goodwill is
allocated to the respective cash-generating unit (“CGU”). Goodwill is tested for impairment annually by estimating
the recoverable amounts of the CGU using the value-in-use model. Management applied the value-in-use
(discounted cash flow method) to determine the recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs.

We considered the audit of management’s impairment assessment to be a key audit matter because the
assessment process involves management exercising significant judgement and making assumptions of future
market and economic conditions.

We evaluated the appropriateness of CGU identified by management based on our knowledge of the business
acquisition giving rise to the goodwill and our understanding of the current business of the Group.
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Independent Auditor's Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

We have performed the following procedures:

Performed walkthrough of management’s process of setting budgets on which the cash flow forecasts are
based.

Tested robustness of management’s budgeting process by comparing the actual financial performance
against previously forecasted results.

Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions used in cash flow projections by comparing them against
future business plans and external market reports, considering the impact associated with COVID-19
pandemic.

Involved our internal specialist in the review of discount and terminal growth rates.

Performed sensitivity analysis, focusing on reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions or discount
rates, and analysed the impact to the recoverable amount.

Reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures made on the goodwill in Note 13 to the financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, SFRS(I) and IFRS, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised

use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor's Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in

accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Tan Boon Leong.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

31 March 2022
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